
 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 

1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 

 
If you require further information, please contact: Lizzie Rich 
Telephone: 01344 352253 
Email: lizzie.rich@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 29 May 2018 

  

 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Licensing and Safety Committee 
Thursday 7 June 2018, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber - Time Square, Market Street, Bracknell, RG12 1JD 

To: Licensing and Safety Committee 

Councillor Allen (Chairman), Councillor Thompson (Vice-Chairman), Councillors Mrs Angell, 
Dr Barnard, G Birch, Brossard, Brunel-Walker, Finch, Finnie, Ms Gaw, Leake, Mrs McKenzie, 
Ms Miller, Porter and Tullett 

 

ALISON SANDERS 
Director of Resources 
 



 

 

Licensing and Safety Committee 
Thursday 7 June 2018, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber - Time Square, Market Street, Bracknell, RG12 
1JD 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media at meetings which are 
held in public are permitted.  Those wishing to record proceedings at a meeting are 
however advised to contact the Democratic Services Officer named as the contact for 
further information on the front of this agenda as early as possible before the start of 
the meeting so that any special arrangements can be made. 

AGENDA 
 Page No 

1. Apologies for Absence   

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or affected 
interests in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. 
 
Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should 
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and 
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they 
are withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests 
the Monitoring Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days. 
 
Any Member with an affected Interest in a matter must disclose the 
interest to the meeting.  There is no requirement to withdraw from the 
meeting when the interest is only an affected interest, but the 
Monitoring Officer should be notified of the interest, if not previously 
notified of it, within 28 days of the meeting. 
 

 

3. Minutes   

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 4 
January 2018, and the minutes of the Annual Meeting held after Annual 
Council on 24 May 2018.  
 

5 - 12 

4. Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent. 
 

 

5. Notice of Public Speaking   

 To note those agenda items which have received an application for 
public speaking 
 

 

6. Licensing Annual Report   

 To note the activities carried out by the Licensing Section during the 13 - 18 



 

 

period 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.   
 

7. Review of Guidance Notes and Conditions for Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicle Owners, Operators and Drivers  

 

 To approve consultation on amendments and additions to the Council’s 
Guidance Notes and Conditions document. 
 

19 - 22 

8. Review of Statement of Gambling Principles   

 To advise the Committee of the proposed timetable to review the 
Council’s Statement of Gambling Principles.  
 

23 - 56 

9. Minutes of Licensing Panels   

 To note the minutes of Licensing Panels held since the last meeting.  
 

57 - 72 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

LICENSING AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
4 JANUARY 2018 
7.30  - 8.20 PM 

  

 
Present: 
Councillors Allen (Chairman), Mrs Angell, Dr Barnard, G Birch, Brossard, Brunel-Walker, 
Finch, Finnie, Ms Gaw, Leake, Mrs McKenzie, Ms Miller, Porter and Tullett 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Councillors Thompson 

12. Declarations of Interest  

There were no Declarations of Interest.  

13. Minutes  

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2017 were approved as 
a correct record.  
 
Matters Arising 
In relation to minute 9 (Street Trading – Bracknell Town Centre), the Chief Officer: 
Environment and Public Protection informed Members that the revised street trading 
fee was suspended and the original fee reinstated as of 24 October.  There had been 
no financial implications arising from the decision impacting upon any existing street 
trader.  The fees and charges were due to be reviewed by the Public Protection 
Partnership, and would over time be harmonised where appropriate across Bracknell 
Forest, West Berkshire and Wokingham Councils.  The review would ensure that the 
level of fee to be recovered reflects cost. 

 
The Chairman added that a street trader Licensing Panel which shortly followed the 
meeting had implemented the original fee which had applied at the time of the 
application. 

14. Urgent Items of Business  

The Committee was advised that there was an urgent item which the Chairman had 
agreed to add to the agenda relating to Street Trading in Bracknell town centre.  
 
The reason for urgency was that issues had arisen over the Christmas period, which 
required a resolution before the next Licensing and Safety Committee meeting in 
June 2018.  

15. Street Trading - Bracknell Town Centre  

The Committee considered an Urgent Item on Street Trading in Bracknell Town 
Centre.  
 
The town centre street trading over the Christmas period had caused some issues 
regarding land ownership between Bracknell Forest Council and privately owned land 

5

Agenda Item 3



 

 

by Bracknell Regeneration Partnership. In order to allow Bracknell Regeneration 
Partnership to manage their land effectively, a change was required.  
 
The Chief Officer: Environment and Public Protection explained that since the urgent 
item had been submitted on the morning of the meeting, a new option to pursue had 
come to light. It was proposed that the company Streetdots could be granted street 
trading consent for the entire town centre area, and could select suitable traders in 
consultation with Bracknell Regeneration Partnership. Otherwise, the Legal process 
to suspend the requirements for street trading consents on those parts of the Lexicon 
managed by BRP including, The Avenue, Braccan Walk, Union Square, Town 
Square, Bull Square, Princess Square and Eagle Lane would need to be 
implemented.  
 
In response to questions, the following points were noted: 

 It was confirmed that it was a Council duty to formally suspend the street 
trading enforcement in an area, rather than this Committee.  

 If Streetdots were granted a street trading consent for the Lexicon area, 
Bracknell Regeneration Partnership could manage the street traders who 
were placed in the area.  

 Granting street trading consent to Streetdots would also ensure that Bracknell 
Forest Council’s Licensing Team would be able to enforce consistently across 
land ownerships.  

 Streetdots would be responsible for the management of the street traders, 
and each case would be treated individually for the purposes of intervention. 

 It was suggested that street traders around the banks may encourage footfall 
further up the High Street.  

 
The Licensing and Safety Committee agreed that they were content for the Chief 
Officer: Environment & Public Protection to begin the process of granting street 
trading consent to Streetdots. If this would not be possible, the Committee supported 
the commencement of the legal process with Council’s approval to suspend street 
trading restrictions for the parts of the Lexicon managed by BRP.  

16. Notice of Public Speaking  

There were no requests for public speaking. 

17. Practical Driving Assessments  

The Committee received a report on Practical Driving Assessments.  
 
It was commented that the proposed Practical Driving Assessment provider, AA 
Drivetech, would be used across the Public Protection Partnership area.  
 
It was clarified that the provider would charge a flat rate, and it was assumed that this 
rate would cover 7 days a week although officers undertook to check this.  
 
All providers are DVSA approved to ensure consistent standard across providers.  
 
RESOLVED that: 
 

i) The addition of the provider detailed within Annex B (AA Drivetech) be 
approved to the Council’s list of approved providers of practical driving 
assessments.  
 

6



 

 

ii) Future changes to the list of approved providers at Annex A be agreed by the 
Public Protection Manager in liaison with the Chairman as and when 
required.  

18. Safeguarding Training for Licensed Drivers and Operators  

The Committee considered a report on Safeguarding Training for Licensed Drivers 
and Operators.  
 
The previous contact who co-ordinated the safeguarding training within the Council 
had left, and so an external provider had been found. The proposed provider had 
provided some sample slides of training material for the Committee to consider. 
 
The Committee was informed that the test element of the training would be 
maintained by the proposed provider, and that the proposed provider could integrate 
disability training as well as Child Sexual Exploitation to give a holistic safeguarding 
approach.  
 
The procurement requirements were being explored, as the chosen provider would 
operate across the Public Protection Partnership area.  
 
The Committee asked officers for examples of questions asked during the test 
element of safeguarding training. Officers undertook to provide some sample 
questions to Members, and in addition it was commented that any Member was 
welcome to attend and observe a safeguarding training course run by the provider.  
 
The Committee requested that reporting mechanisms be put in place to monitor 
uptake in order to ensure visibility. 
 
It was agreed that clarity was required around the driver responsibility under the 
Equality Act for carrying wheelchairs of different types.  
 
RESOLVED that: 
 

i) Subject to any procurement requirements for the Public Protection 
Partnership, an alternative provider for safeguarding training which met 
the original specification of the Committee be selected by the Public 
Protection Manager in liaison with the Chairman.   

19. Review of Guidance Notes and Conditions  

The Committee received a report on the Review of Guidance Notes and Conditions 
for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Owners, Operators and Drivers.  
 
A consultation was proposed, and subject to any comments received, the Guidance 
Notes would come into effect from 1 April 2018. Any issues arising from the 
consultation would be discussed with the Chairman, and a decision made about 
whether the comments were required to be discussed by the  Committee.  
 
It was clarified that the safeguarding training was included in the current Guidance 
Notes booklet.  
 
RESOLVED that: 
 

i) The amendments and additions to the Guidance Notes and Conditions 
document set out at Annex A be approved for consultation, and 

7



 

 

 
ii) In the event that any comments are received, the Public Protection Manager 

should be required to liaise with the Chairman to determine whether a 
further report is required to consider those comments, or whether the 
document can be republished with approval of the Chairman in respect of 
any further amendments.  

20. Licensing Fees and Charges 2018-2019  

The Committee considered a report on the Fees and Charges 2018-19.  
 
The fees had predominantly increased by 3%, with a few exceptions in respect of 
two-day a week street trading consents and hourly rates for enforcement on caravan 
sites which had increased by a greater percentage to align with the Public Protection 
Partnership charge. Payments had been kept to whole numbers to assist cash 
payments.  
 
Subject to Committee approval, the trade would be consulted on the new fees and 
charges for operator and vehicle licences, and a newspaper advert issued to 
advertise the change.  
 
There was a query around the rates of charge, however it was clarified that Licensing 
Authorities could not make a profit from their Fees and Charges. Fees had been set 
based on the administrative time and resources required in addition to compliance 
checks. Other charges had been set as hourly rates across the Public Protection 
Partnership, and officers were asked to check the background on this £55 per hour 
rate.  
 
It was noted that the 2019/20 Fees and Charges would be rewritten in order to align 
with the Public Protection Partnership, and that these figures would be established 
with evidence.  
 
RESOLVED that: 
 

i) Save for the vehicle and private hire operator licence fees, the Committee 
recommended to the Executive the new fees and charges detailed in 
Annex A, for public consultation, and  
 

ii) The proposed charges for operators and vehicle licence fees were agreed to 
be: 
a. Advertised 
b. If no objections are received, implemented for any licences 

commencing from 1 April 2018; or 
c. If objections are received they be considered by the Public Protection 

Manager in liaison with the Chairman, who will then set those fees and 
charges for any licences commencing from 1 April 2018 

21. Minutes of Licensing Panels  

The minutes of the following Licensing Panels were noted: 

 26 July 2017 – Shell, Sandhust 

 2 August 2017 – Co-Operative, Jennett’s Park 

 30 August 2017 – Fenwick, The Lexicon 

 6 September 2017 – Star Kebabs 

 29 November 2017 - B&B Plus 
 

8



 

 

It was commented that B&B Plus was returning to a reconvened Panel on 16 January 
2018, so this matter could not be discussed.  
 

 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

9



This page is intentionally left blank

10



 

 

LICENSING AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
23 MAY 2018 
8.46  - 8.48 PM 

  

 
Present: 
 
Councillors Allen (Chairman), Thompson (Vice-Chairman), Mrs Angell, Dr Barnard, G Birch, 
Brossard, Brunel-Walker, Finch, Ms Gaw, Leake, Mrs McKenzie, Porter and Tullett 
 
Apologies for Absence were received from: 
 
Councillors Finnie and Ms Miller 

 

1. Election of Chairman  

RESOLVED that Councillor Allen be appointed Chairman of the Licensing and Safety 
Committee for the Municipal Year 2018 - 2019. 

 

COUNCILLOR ALLEN IN THE CHAIR 

2. Appointment of Vice-Chairman  

RESOLVED that Councillor Thompson be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Licensing 
and Safety Committee for the Municipal Year 2018 - 2019. 

3. Appointment of Licensing Panels  

RESOLVED that: 

i) Membership of Licensing Panels be any three councillors drawn, as required, 
from the membership of the Licensing and Safety Committee. 

 

ii) The Appointment of the Licensing Panel Chairmen be any councillor who has 
completed the Chairman training drawn, as required, from the membership of 
the Licensing and Safety Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

11



This page is intentionally left blank

12



Unrestricted 
 

TO: LICENSING AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
7 JUNE 2018 

 

 
ANNUAL REPORT 

Public Protection Manager 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report covers the activities carried out by the Licensing Service of the Public 

Protection Partnership in the Bracknell Forest area during the period 1 April 2017 to 
31 March 2018.   

 
2 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
2.1 Attached as Annex A is a list of the licences, registrations, permits and consents that 

are current as of 1 April 2018 or were processed within the last year. The list includes 
details of numbers for the previous three years for comparison purposes.  This is a 
single indicator of the number of transactions that the Licensing Section has with 
businesses operating within the Borough. Legislation requiring a licence/permit for a 
business activity is generally enacted on health and safety grounds to protect users 
of a service or those that might be affected due to their proximity to the licensed 
premises or their interaction with a licensed person.  

 
2.2 The Licensing Service considers and issues a range of licences and permits required 

by businesses in order that they can deliver a range of services and goods to 
residents and visitors to Bracknell Forest. The service is aware that the licensing 
function, whilst offering protection, can also act as a barrier to others who wish to 
deliver services or supply goods and every effort is made to assist businesses to 
understand and progress rapidly through the licensing process. The service therefore 
has a number of functions including business advice, processing of applications, 
monitoring compliance and where necessary taking enforcement action. 

 
2.3 A number of the licences require the submission of documents which have to be 

validated by the Licensing Service. These include such items as vehicle insurance 
documents and inspection certificates, driving licences, medical reports, DBS 
disclosures and risk assessments. These checks are essential to ensure the 
continued confidence of the Council, and ultimately the user, in the safety of the 
service or goods being supplied.   

 
2.4 For 2016/2017, the service set itself a target to issue licences within 2 working days 

(taxis) or 3 working days (non-taxis) of receipt of a complete and valid application on 
95% of occasions. This is in addition to various statutory deadlines which must be 
met. The service achieved 79% in 2017/18, compared with 92% in 2016/17. This is in 
the main due to staffing issues within the support team, which result in there being 0 
FTE for 2 months, and an equivalent of only 2 FTEs for the remainder of the year, 
compared with 6 FTEs in the previous year. New members of staff have had to be 
recruited and they have required training from colleagues which has impacted on the 
service. In addition, the introduction of the new IT system in 2017 has also had a 
knock on effect for all staff. 

 
  

13

Agenda Item 6



Unrestricted 
 

2.5 A further aspect is that of assisting businesses to grow whilst complying with the 
legal requirements and conditions. The service provides an extensive range of advice 
and information sheets via the Council’s website. Additionally officers regularly meet 
with applicants or licence holders to give guidance, such as attendance at Pubwatch 
meetings run by the trade, and meeting private hire operators at their offices and taxi 
drivers at the ranks. The Licensing Section dealt with 814 complaints and requests 
for service in 2017/2018 (compared with 876 in 2016/2017).  

 
2.6 Officers use a risk based assessment programme to visit licensed premises to check 

compliance and provide assistance and advice for those businesses. In 2017/18 
officers carried out 36 inspections (106 in 2016/17). The majority of these visits were 
carried out with Home Office Immigration Compliance and Enforcement, in their new 
role as a responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003.    

 
2.7 These figures reflect that the team was short staffed for 4 months of the year and that 

officers have also been required to complete work normally done by the support team 
as they have also had issues as detailed above. In addition, intelligence from 
Thames Valley Police has been lower than previously as the officer covering 
Bracknell also covers Wokingham and High Wycombe.  
 

2.8 Officers initially deal with non-compliance by working with the business to raise 
standards and further unannounced visits may be made to verify improvement.  
Where non-compliance continues, officers use an Enforcement Policy which provides 
for a stepped process to include warnings, cautions, review, suspension or 
revocation of a licence or finally prosecution.   

 
2.9 In the last year, officers issued 3 formal written warnings in relation to licensing 

matters (0 in 2016/17). In addition, officers issued enforcement points to licensed 
drivers and operators for incidents of non-compliance such as illegal tyres and failure 
to notify the Council of cautions, fixed penalties and convictions. At the time of writing 
this report, detailed figures in respect of the enforcement points are not available, but 
it is hoped that these can be provided at the meeting.  

 
2.10 Over the course of the year, the following licences and applications were considered 

by Licensing Panels:  
 

 1 driver – granted with a written warning  

 2 street trading consents – both granted 

 5 premises licence applications – 3 new (2 granted and 1 refused) and 2 
variations (1 granted and 1 part grant part refuse).  

 
2.11 Other areas of work that were completed in 2017/18 include: 
 

 No multi-agency taxi or street trader checks were conducted, in the main due 
to lack of capacity within Thames Valley Police Roads Policing 

 Officers assisted RBWM with checking licensed vehicles during Royal Ascot  

 The Safety Advisory Group received forms for 57 local events during 2017/18, 
and continues to receive positive feedback from event organisers who see it 
as helpful to them delivering safe events.   

 
3 EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
3.1 None. 
 

14



Unrestricted 
 

4 STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None. 
 
Background Papers 
None 
 
Contact for further information 
Laura Driscoll, Principal Licensing Officer - 01344 352517 
laura.driscoll@westberks.gov.uk 
 

15

mailto:laura.driscoll@westberks.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Current Licences Annex A

Type
Numbers at
1 April 2015

Numbers at 
1 April 2016

Numbers at 
1 April 2017

Numbers at 
1 April 2018

Private Hire Operators 40 38 43 43
Private Hire Vehicles 165 171 174 169
Private Hire Drivers 134 138 139 153
Dual (Hackney Carriage and Private Hire) Drivers 163 161 165 164
Hackney Carriage Vehicles 83 85 85 85
Home to School Drivers 17 13 11 7
Home to School Vehicles 25 33 35 33
Animal Boarding Establishments 3 4 5 5
Home Boarders of Dogs 27 29 30 34
Riding Establishments 6 6 7 6
Performing Animals 4 5 4 5
Pet Shops 7 7 7 7
Scrap Metal Site 3 3 2 2
Scrap Metal Mobile Collectors 7 7 7 3
Hairdressers 61 64 60 59
Personal Licences 1140 1213 1292 1358
Premises Licences 228 222 231 234
Temporary Event Notices 229 244 239 271
Club Premises Certificates 21 21 21 21
Street Traders 16 15 12 17
Street Collections 37 38 26 30
House to House Collections 50 30 17 29
Lotteries 59 60 56 58
Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits 10 10 13 13
Gaming Machine Notifications 35 31 30 29
Club Machine Permits 8 12 9 8
Club Gaming Permits 1 0 0 0
Bingo Premises 1 1 1 1
Adult Gaming Centres 1 1 1 1
Betting Premises 12 12 12 11

For TENs, street collections and house to house collections, the figure given is 
the total number of notices / applications received within the calendar year

17



This page is intentionally left blank



Unrestricted  
 

TO: LICENSING AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
7 JUNE 2018 

  
 

REVIEW OF GUIDANCE NOTES AND CONDITIONS FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE  
AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE OWNERS, OPERATORS AND DRIVERS 

(Public Protection Manager) 
 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1  The purpose of this report is to seek approval to go out to consultation on amendments 
and additions to the Council’s Guidance Notes and Conditions document. 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 That the Committee: 
 

i) approves the amendments and additions to the Guidance Notes and 
Conditions document set out at Annex A for consultation, and 

ii) requires officers to bring back a report to the next meeting on the results of 
that consultation.  

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 The Council issues the Guidance Notes and Conditions document to owners, drivers 
and operators of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles.  These notes are 
intended to set out the legal requirements, licence conditions and give guidance to the 
trade. The guidance notes are updated on a regular basis to reflect changes in law and 
Council policy.  

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 Members may choose to vary the document at this stage prior to the consultation.    

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

5.1 Attached at Annex A are a set of proposed additions and amendments to the Guidance 
Notes for 2018. The material changes are as follows:  

 Amending the policy to detail that only DBS disclosures processed through 
West Berkshire Council on behalf of Bracknell Forest Council will be accepted 
going forward 

 Removing the requirement for licensed drivers to do a first aid course, but 
adding the requirement for licensed drivers to do disability awareness training 
as part of the safeguarding course.  

 Amending the policy in respect of inspections of vehicles involved in accidents 
and temporary vehicle licences 

 Confirming the change in service standards for licence applications from 2 days 
to 5 days 

5.2 The consultation will run from mid June to mid September. A further report will be 
brought to Committee on 18 October 2018 for consideration of any comments received. 

  

19

Agenda Item 7



Unrestricted  
 

6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 

Borough Solicitor 

6.1 The legal implications are identified within the report. 

Borough Treasurer 

6.2 There are no significant financial implications arising from the recommendation in this 
report.  

Equalities Impact Assessment 

6.3 There are no implications arising from the recommendation in this report. 

Strategic Risk Management Issues  

6.4 There are no implications arising from the recommendation in this report. 

7 CONSULTATION 

 Principal Groups Consulted 

7.1 All licence holders and members of the public may comment on the consultation.  

 Method of Consultation 

7.2 The consultation will take place via the Council’s public consultation portal. Details of 
the consultation will be sent to all licence holders who have provided an email address 
to the Licensing team.  

 Representations Received 

7.3 Not applicable at this stage.   

 
Background Papers 
Guidance Notes and Conditions for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Owners, 
Operators and Drivers (March 2018) 
 
Contact for further information 
Laura Driscoll, Principal Licensing Officer, 01344 352517 
laura.driscoll@westberks.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20

mailto:laura.driscoll@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Annex A 
Amendments to Guidance Notes and Conditions 

 
Amendments to existing conditions 
 
DBS Disclosures for Drivers 
 
5.2 Only DBS enhanced disclosures with Bracknell Forest Council as the registered body will be 
accepted. 
 
amend to 
 
5.2 Only DBS enhanced disclosures processed through West Berkshire Council on behalf of 
Bracknell Forest Council will be accepted. 
 
[This reflects a change of procedure as all DBS applications for licensed drivers will be made via 
the West Berkshire DBS portal].  
 
 
5.17 From 1 April 2017, all new applicants for a driver or operator licence must complete 
safeguarding training prior to the issue of a licence. Existing drivers and operators must complete the 
training prior to the next renewal of their licence. Once passed, the training must be retaken by all 
licensed drivers and operators within a 3 year period.  
 
amend to 
 
5.17 All new applicants for a driver or operator licence must complete safeguarding and disability 
awareness training prior to the issue of a licence. Existing drivers and operators must complete the 
training prior to the next renewal of their licence. Once passed, refresher training must be retaken by all 
licensed drivers and operators within a 3 year period.  
 
[This aims to promote better disability awareness for both drivers and operators to meet their 
obligations under the Equality Act 2010].  
 
 
Accidents and Temporary Vehicle Licences 
 
22.1 If a licensed vehicle is involved in an accident, even if there is only minor damage to the 
vehicle, the proprietor must inform the Licensing Section in writing within 72 hours to allow the vehicle to 
be inspected and the damage assessed.   
 
amend to 
 
22.1 If a licensed vehicle is involved in an accident, even if there is only minor damage to the 
vehicle, the proprietor must inform the Licensing Team within 72 hours (3 days). If required by an 
officer, the vehicle may be required to undergo a vehicle inspection at an authorised garage.  
 
[This reflects a change of procedure as officers are not trained vehicle inspectors].  
 
 
22.5 A temporary replacement vehicle will usually only be licensed under the original vehicle 
licence for a maximum of 2 months, to allow for repairs to be carried out on the original vehicle as 
mentioned previously in this section.  The usual application process applies. 
 
amend to  
 
22.5 A temporary replacement vehicle will usually only be licensed under the original vehicle 
licence for a maximum of 3 months, to allow for repairs to be carried out on the original vehicle as 
mentioned previously in this section.  The usual application process applies. 
 
[This seeks to provide flexibility in cases where a vehicle repair can take a lengthy period to 
complete].  

21



Annex A 
Amendments to Guidance Notes and Conditions 

 
Service Standards 
 
37.1 Within 2 clear working days of receipt of all documentation necessary to make a decision 
upon a licence application, we aim to: 

 issue all the necessary documents, badges or plates,  and notify you that they are ready for 
collection; or 

 advise you of the reason for a delay or, in some cases, the reason for refusal. 
 
amend to 
 
37.1 Within 5 clear working days of receipt of all documentation necessary to make a decision 
upon a licence application, we aim to: 
 

 issue all the necessary documents, badges or plates,  and notify you that they are ready for 
collection; or 

 advise you of the reason for a delay or, in some cases, the reason for refusal. 
 
[This new service standard has been agreed at the Joint Management Board for the Public 
Protection Partnership and reflects the level of service expected for all licence applications].  
 
 

Conditions to be removed 
 
5.14  All new licensed drivers are required to attend a First Aid Course run by the Council, unless 
they can provide proof that they have passed a recognised First Aid course within the last five years. 
 
5.15 All licensed drivers are required to attend a First Aid course five years after the date of their 
initial course, or when their current certificate expires.   
 
5.16 Where a driver fails to attend a First Aid course without reasonable excuse, their licence will 
be suspended until the course is attended. Failure to attend a booked course will mean a further fee is 
required to be paid to make a new booking. 
 
[It is recommended that the above requirements be removed to be consistent across the Public 
Protection Partnership].  
 
 

 

22



Unrestricted  
 

TO: LICENSING AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
7 JUNE 2018 

  
 

REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF GAMBLING PRINCIPLES 
Public Protection Manager 

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1  The purpose of this report is to advise the Committee of the proposed timetable to 

review the Council’s Statement of Gambling Principles (‘Statement’) as attached at 
Annex A.   

 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Committee: 
 

i) approves the proposed timetable as set out in paragraph 5.3; and  
ii) agrees the proposed consultee list at Annex B.  

 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
3.1 Under the Gambling Act 2005, the Council is required to review and consult upon its 

Statement three years from the date of adoption.  The present Statement was 
published on 31 January 2016 and therefore must undergo a review and be re-
published on or before 31 January 2019. 

 
3.2 The Statement must be produced following consultation with those bodies and 

persons set out in subsection (3) of section 349. This includes the Chief Officer of 
Police, persons who represent the interests of persons carrying on gambling 
businesses in the area and persons who represent the interests of persons who are 
likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions under the Act.  

 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 There are no alternative options as the consultation and revision of the Statement are 

legal requirements. 
 
5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
5.1 Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 requires all licensing authorities to prepare 

and publish a statement of the principles that they propose to apply in exercising their 
functions under the Act. The Statement will last for a maximum of three years and 
can be reviewed and revised by the authority at any time.  

 
5.2 It is recommended that the consultation should be in accordance with Government 

best practice, including allowing 12 weeks for responses to the consultation.  Whilst 
this is not a legal requirement, a failure to consult in an appropriate manner could be 
grounds for a subsequent legal challenge to the Statement. 

 
5.3 To enable the Statement to be reviewed and published in accordance with the 

legislation, the following timetable is recommended: 
 

June 2018 - Sept 2018 Consultation period 
 

23

Agenda Item 8



Unrestricted  
 

18 October 2018 Report to Licensing and Safety Committee on the 
consultation with draft Statement for comment and approval 

 
21 November 2018 Report to CMT on consultation responses received with 

draft Statement for comment and approval 
 
18 December 2018  Report to Executive for approval to take draft 

Statement to Full Council 
 
16 January 2019   Draft Statement to Full Council 
 
31 January 2019  New Statement published and comes into force 
 
 

6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Borough Solicitor 
 

6.1 The legal implications are identified within the report. 
 

Borough Treasurer 
 

6.2 There are no significant financial implications arising from the recommendation in this 
report. 

 
Equalities Impact Assessment 
 

6.3 There are no implications arising from the recommendation in this report. 
 

Strategic Risk Management Issues  
 

6.4 There are no implications arising from the recommendation in this report. 
 
7 CONSULTATION 
 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
 
7.1 The list of proposed consultees is attached at Annex B but any person may 

comment on the consultation.  
 
 Method of Consultation 
 
7.2 The consultation will take place via the Council’s public consultation portal. Details of 

the consultation will be sent to those listed in Annex A via email.  
 
 Representations Received 
 
7.3 Not applicable at this stage.   
 
Background Papers 
None 
 
Contact for further information 
Laura Driscoll, Principal Licensing Officer, 01344 352517 
laura.driscoll@westberks.gov.uk 

24

mailto:laura.driscoll@westberks.gov.uk


Unrestricted  
 

List of Consultees 

 

 Association of British Bookmakers 

 Association of Licensed Multiple Retailers 

 Bingo Association 

 British Amusement Catering Trade Association 

 British Institute of Inn Keeping 

 British Beer and Pub Association 

 Committee of Registered Club Associations 

 Gamblers Anonymous 

 GAMCARE 

 Holders of existing gambling licences / permits 

 Involve 

 Local businesses and their representatives, e.g. Bracknell Regeneration Partnership, 
Bracknell Forest Chamber of Commerce 

 Local community associations 

 Members of Bracknell Forest Council 

 National Association of Bookmakers 

 National Federation of Community Organisations 

 Parish and Town Councils 

 Premises licence / club premises certificate holders 

 Pub & Drug Watch 

 Public Consultation Portal 

 Thames Valley Police / Community Safety Partnership 

 

25



This page is intentionally left blank



https://www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/business-information/licensing/alcohol-and-
entertainment-licences/gambling-premises-licences 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Statement 
of 

Gambling 
Principles 

 
 
 
 
 

JANUARY 2019 
 
 
 

GAMBLING ACT 2005 
SI 2006 No 637 

 

27

https://www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/business-information/licensing/alcohol-and-entertainment-licences/gambling-premises-licences
https://www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/business-information/licensing/alcohol-and-entertainment-licences/gambling-premises-licences


 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

2 

BRACKNELL FOREST BOROUGH COUNCIL 
STATEMENT OF GAMBLING PRINCIPLES 

 
INDEX 

           Page 
 

1 Statement of Gambling Principles 3 
1.1 Introduction 3 
1.2 The Borough of Bracknell Forest 3 
1.3 Licensing Objectives 4 
1.4 Licensable Activities 4 
1.5 Responsible Authorities 5 
1.6 Interested Parties 6 
1.7 Information Exchange 7 
1.8 Enforcement 7 
1.9  Local Risk Assessments 8 

 
2 Premises Licences 8 

2.1 General Principles 8 
2.2 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder 9 
2.3 Ensuring gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 10 
2.4 Protecting children and other vulnerable people from gambling 10 
2.5 Licence Conditions 10 
2.6 Licensed Family Entertainment Centres 12 
2.7 Casinos 13 
2.8 Bingo Premises 14 
2.9 Betting Premises 14 
2.10  Adult Gaming Centres 14 
2.11 Tracks 15 
2.12 Travelling Fairs 16 
2.13 Provisional Statements 17 
2.14 Licensing Reviews 17 

 
3 Permits, Temporary and Occasional Use Notices 18 

3.1 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits 18 
3.2 Alcohol Licensed Premises Notifications and Gaming Machine Permits 19 
3.3 Prize Gaming Permits 20 
3.4 Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 20 
3.5 Temporary Use Notices 21 
3.6 Occasional Use Notices 22 

 
4 Decision Making 22 

4.1 The Licensing Process 22 
4.2 Committee Terms of Reference 22 

 
5 Further information 23 

Appendix A: List of Consultees 25 
Appendix B: Map of Bracknell Forest Borough 26 
Appendix C: Summary of Licensing Authority Delegations 27 
Appendix D: Gambling Act Glossary 28 

 

28



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

3 

1 STATEMENT OF GAMBLING PRINCIPLES 
 
1.1 Introduction 
 
The Gambling Act 2005 (referred to in this document as ‘the Act’) requires the 
Council to prepare and publish a Statement of Gambling Principles (‘Statement’) that 
sets out the policies that the Council will generally apply to promote the licensing 
objectives when making decisions on applications made under the Act. 
 
This Statement has been prepared having regard to the licensing objectives of the 
Act, the Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the Gambling Commission, and 
any responses from those consulted on the Statement. A list of those consulted can 
be found at Appendix A. The full list of comments made and the consideration by the 
Council of those comments is available on request.  
 
The Statement will come into effect on the 31 January 2019 and will be reviewed as 
necessary, and at least every 3 years from the date of adoption. 
 
This Statement is not intended to override the right of any person to make an 
application under the Act, and to have that application considered on its merits.  
Equally, the Statement is not intended to undermine the right of any person to make 
representations about an application or to seek a review of a licence where provision 
has been made for them to do so.  
 
1.2 The Borough of Bracknell Forest 
 
Bracknell Forest lies 28 miles west of London, at the heart of the Thames Valley. The 
borough covers 109 sq km of central Berkshire and includes the former New Town of 
Bracknell, together with Sandhurst town and the villages of Crowthorne and Binfield, 
along with a number of smaller settlements across Warfield and Winkfield. The area 
has easy access to the motorway network (M3, M4, M40 and M25), Heathrow, and 
direct train links into London. A map can be found at Appendix B. 
 

The Borough’s population is 119447 (mid-year 2016 estimate). The population is 
relatively young (median age 38.5 years). 13.7% of the population is over 65 years of 
age, compared to 17.7% nationally, although this is expected to grow.  
 
Bracknell Forest is one of the least deprived areas of the country (ranked 287 out of 
326 local authorities in England on the Index of Multiple Deprivation 2015). Property 
prices and levels of car ownership are significantly higher than the national average. 
However, these headline figures mask significant pockets of deprivation. For 
instance, 6 out of 19 wards in the borough have free school meal eligibility of over 
10%. The borough rate is 7.9% compared to 14.3% nationally (Source: School 
Census January 2016). 7.7 percent of 0-15 year olds in the borough are living in 
poverty, compared to a national average of 14.7% and a South East average of 
10.6%.. (Source: DWP 2015).  
 
 
Bracknell Forest is within the economically buoyant Thames Valley and already a 
premier business location. But the aspiration is to make the local economy even 
more successful throughout the borough. Bracknell’s £240m town centre 
regeneration programme, the Lexicon, opened in September 2017 and further 
regeneration in the town centre is ongoing. The number of people claiming Job 
Seekers’ Allowance has fallen from a peak of 2.5% in March 2010, to 0.6% in May 

29



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

4 

2016. This represents just 440 people. The figure remains lower than both the South 
East and national averages (0.8% and 1.3% respectively). 

 
 
The estimated proportion of young people aged 16-18 in Bracknell Forest who were 
not in education, employment or training (NEET) in 2015 was 3.3%, representing 
around 120 young people. This remains a key priority for the area.  
 
Overall crime in 2015/16 increased by 3.6% when compared to 2014/15. This 
increase is largely due a to rise in the number of ‘Crimes Against Society’, i.e. drugs 
offences, which is the result of police taking a robust approach to tackling the 
problem of drugs offences in the borough. All other areas of crime have seen 
decreases: Victim Based Crime is down by 6.8%, Recorded Hate Crime is down by 
40% and Domestic Abuse Crime down by 7.6%. Despite the increase in overall 
crime, Bracknell Forest compares favourably with the Thames Valley as a whole, 
which saw a 7.2% increase in overall crime and with the Berkshire Unitaries, which 
saw an average 6.25% increase.  
 
1.3 Licensing Objectives 
 
This licensing authority is aware that, as per Section 153 of the Act, in making 
decisions about premises licences and temporary use notices it should aim to permit 
the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it: 
 

 in accordance with any relevant Codes of Practice issued by the Gambling 
Commission; 

 in accordance with any relevant Gambling Commission guidance; 

 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; 

 in accordance with this Statement of Gambling Principles.  
 

There are three licensing objectives which are central to the Act.  These are: 
 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime; 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; 

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling. 

 
1.4 Licensable Activities 
 
‘Gambling’ is defined in the Act as either gaming, betting, or taking part in a lottery. 
 

 Gaming means playing a game of chance for a prize 

 Betting means making or accepting a bet on the outcome of a race, 
competition, or any other event; the likelihood of anything occurring or not 
occurring; or whether anything is true or not 

 A lottery is where persons are required to pay in order to take part in an 
arrangement, during the course of which one or more prizes are allocated by 
a process which relies wholly on chance. 

 
The Act provides for three categories of licence: 
 

 Operating licences 

 Personal licences 

30



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

5 

 Premises licences. 
 
The Gambling Commission is responsible for remote (online) gambling, operating 
licences and personal licences.  
 
This licensing authority is responsible for issuing premises licences and provisional 
statements for the following types of premises:  
 

 Casinos 

 Bingo premises 

 Betting premises and  tracks 

 Adult gaming centres 

 Family entertainment centres.  
 
Additional functions of this licensing authority are to: 
 

 issue permits for gambling and gaming machines in clubs 

 receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises of the use of up to 2 
gaming machines and issue licensed premises gaming machine permits 
where there are more than 2 machines 

 issue permits to family entertainment centres for the use of certain lower 
stake gaming machines 

 issue permits for prize gaming 

 receive and endorse temporary use notices 

 receive occasional use notices for betting at tracks 

 register small society lotteries 

 provide details of licences issued to the Gambling Commission 

 maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under the Act. 
 

 1.5 Responsible Authorities 
 
Responsible authorities must be notified of all premises licence applications and are 
entitled to make representations if they are relevant to the licensing objectives. 
 
Section 157 of the Act defines those authorities as: 
 

 Gambling Commission 

 Police 

 Local Fire Authority 

 Local Planning authority 

 Environmental Health 

 Child Protection Committee 

 HM Revenue and Customs 

 A licensing authority in whose area the premises is situated.  
 
The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply 
in exercising its powers under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, a 
body which is competent to advise the authority about the protection of children from 
harm.  The principles are: 

 The need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the 
licensing authority’s area, and  

 The need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, 
rather than any particular vested interest group. 

31



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

6 

 
This authority designates the Bracknell Area Child Protection Committee for this 
purpose. 
 
The contact details of all the responsible authorities under the Gambling Act 2005 are 
available on the Council’s website.   
 
1.6 Interested Parties 
 
Interested parties can make representations about licence applications, or apply for a 
review of an existing licence.  Interested parties making representations will be 
required to relate their objection to one or more of the licensing objectives.  
 
An interested party is someone who: 
 

 lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the 
authorised activities, or 

 has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities, or 

 represents persons in either of the two groups above.  
 
In determining whether someone lives sufficiently close to particular premises so as 
to be affected the licensing authority will take into account, amongst other things:  
 

 the size and nature of the premises  

 the distance of the premises from the person making the representation 

 the nature of the complaint  

 the potential impact of the premises.   
 
In determining whether a person has a business interest which could be affected, the 
licensing authority will consider, amongst other things: 
 

 the size of the premises 

 the catchment area of the premises, and 

 whether the person making the representation has business interests in the 
catchment area that might be affected.  

 
The term "business interests" is given the widest possible interpretation and includes 
partnerships, charities, faith groups and medical practices. 
 
If an existing gambling business makes a representation that it is going to be affected 
by another gambling business starting up in the area, the licensing authority would 
not consider this as a relevant representation as it does not relate to the licensing 
objectives and instead relates to demand or competition. 
 
The licensing authority may, in certain circumstances, consider a representation to 
be either frivolous or vexatious.  This will generally be a matter of fact given the 
circumstances of each individual case but, before coming to a decision, the licensing 
authority will normally consider: 
 

 who is making the representation and whether there is a history of making 
representations that are not relevant, 

 whether it raises a ‘relevant’ issue or not, or 

 whether it raises issues specifically concerning the premises which is the 
subject of the application. 

32



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

7 

 
The Council, in undertaking its licensing function, will have due regard to the need to 
eliminate unlawful discrimination and to promote equality and good relations between 
persons of different racial groups. 
 
Where an interested party has made either a valid representation about a licensed 
premises or a valid application for a licence to be reviewed, the licensing authority 
may initially arrange a mediation meeting to address and clarify the issues of 
concern. This process will not override the right of any interested party to ask that the 
Licensing Committee consider their valid objections or for any licence holder to 
decline to participate in a mediation meeting. 
 
1.7 Information Exchange 
 
This licensing authority will act in accordance with the provisions of the Gambling Act 
2005 in its exchange of information which includes the provision that the Data 
Protection Act 1998 will not be contravened.  The licensing authority will also have 
regard to any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission on this matter, as well 
as any relevant regulations issued by the Secretary of State under the powers 
provided in the Gambling Act 2005.   
 
Details of those persons making representations will be made available to applicants 
to allow for negotiation and, in the event of a hearing being held, will form part of a 
public document.  Anyone making representations or applying for the review of a 
premises licence will be informed that their details will be disclosed. 
 
1.8 Enforcement 

 
The Council is a signatory to the National Enforcement Concordat and will follow the 
principles set out in it.  It is based around the principles of consistency, transparency 
and proportionality and proposes that a graduated response is taken where offences 
or breaches are found.  
 
This licensing authority has adopted and implemented a risk-based inspection 
programme, based on: 
 

 The licensing objectives 

 Relevant codes of practice 

 Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission 

 The principles set out in this Statement. 
 

The main enforcement and compliance role for this licensing authority in terms of the 
Gambling Act 2005 is to ensure compliance with the premises licences and other 
permissions which it authorises.  The Gambling Commission is the enforcement body 
for operating and personal licences.   
 
As per the Gambling Commission’s Guidance, this licensing authority will endeavour 
to avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes so far as possible.  The licensing 
authority will establish a close working relationship with the Police, the Gambling 
Commission and, where appropriate, other responsible authorities. 
 
The licensing authority will investigate complaints against licensed premises in 
relation to matters relating to the licensing objectives for which it has responsibility. In 

33



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

8 

the first instance, complainants will be encouraged to raise the complaint directly with 
the licence holder or business concerned to seek a local resolution. 
 
1.9  Local Risk Assessments 
 
 Operators with premises licences have an obligation to produce a local risk 
assessment which will assist the licensing authority when considering applications. 
The risk assessment will be similar to an operating schedule under the Licensing Act 
2003 and should consider actual and potential risks to the licensing objectives posed 
by the provision of gambling facilities at a premises. The assessment should detail 
the policies, procedures and control measures to mitigate those risks and should take 
into account the licensing authority’s Statement of Gambling Principles. The licensing 
authority can provide advice on the level of detail required, which will be proportional 
to the scale and nature of the application made. 
 
The licensing authority will expect this risk assessment to accompany all applications 
for premises licences (new and variation), and will also expect the risk assessment to 
be shared with the licensing authority on request. Local risk assessments must be 
reviewed when there are significant changes in local circumstances or at the 
premises, or when applying for a new licence or variation of a licence.  The Council’s 
Local Area Profile is available on request.  
 
2 PREMISES LICENCES 
 
2.1 General Principles 
 
A licence can only be issued in relation to premises that the licensing authority can 
be satisfied are going to be ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably near 
future, consistent with the scale of building or alterations required before the 
premises are brought into use. If the construction of a premises is not yet complete, 
or if they need alteration, or if the applicant does not yet have a right to occupy them, 
then an application for a provisional statement should be made instead.  
 
In deciding whether a premises licence can be granted where there are outstanding 
construction or alteration works at a premises, this authority will determine 
applications on their merits, applying a two stage consideration process:- 
 

 First, whether the premises ought to be permitted to be used for gambling  

 Second, whether appropriate conditions can be put in place to cater for the 
situation that the premises are not yet in the state in which they ought to be 
before gambling takes place. 

 
In the Act, "premises" is defined as including "any place".  A single building could be 
subject to more than one premises licence, provided they are for different parts of the 
building and the different parts of the building can be reasonably regarded as being 
different premises.  This approach has been taken to allow large, multiple unit 
premises such as shopping malls to obtain separate premises licences, where 
appropriate safeguards are in place.  This licensing authority will take account of the 
Gambling Commission’s guidance in respect of this matter and the mandatory 
conditions relating to access between premises. 
When determining an application for a premises licence or review a premises licence, 
regard will be had to the proximity of the premises to schools, vulnerable adult 
centres or residential areas where there may be a high concentration of families with 
children.  The proximity of premises taken into consideration will vary depending on 
the size and scope of the gambling premises concerned.  Each case will, however, 

34



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

9 

be decided on its merits.  Therefore, if an applicant can effectively demonstrate how 
they might overcome any concerns, this will be taken into account. This would be 
expected to be addressed as part of the local risk assessment required to be 
submitted with all new and variation premises licence applications from April 2016.  
 
In determining an application, the licensing authority may not have regard to the 
expected demand for the facilities which it is proposed to provide, nor may it take 
account of any moral objections.  
 
Premises licences are subject to the requirements set out in the Gambling Act 2005 
and regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default conditions which are 
detailed in regulations issued by the Secretary of State.  Licensing authorities are 
able to exclude default conditions and also attach others, where it is believed to be 
appropriate. More detail on licence conditions can be found at 2.5 of this document.  
 
The licensing authority recognises that, apart from the licensing function, there are a 
number of other mechanisms available for addressing issues of unruly behaviour that 
can occur away from licensed premises, including: 
 

 Planning controls 

 Ongoing measures to create a safe and clean environment in these areas in 
partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other Council 
departments 

 Regular liaison with the Police on law enforcement issues regarding disorder 
and anti-social behaviour 

 The power of the Police, other responsible authorities or local residents and 
businesses to seek a review of the licence. 

 
The licensing authority will not seek to use the Act to resolve matters more readily 
dealt with under other legislation, and will seek to avoid any duplication with other 
regulatory systems where possible. For example, the licensing authority will not take 
into account whether a premises has the appropriate planning or building consents, 
nor will it take into account fire or health and safety risks.  
 
Where children and other vulnerable people are allowed access to premises where 
gambling takes place, the licensing authority may take such steps as are lawful and 
necessary to either limit access generally or by introducing measures to prevent 
under-age gambling. The licensing authority will not normally seek to limit the access 
of children to any premises unless it receives representations to that effect or it 
believes it is right to do so for the prevention of their physical, moral or psychological 
harm. Applicants are encouraged to propose any prohibitions or restrictions of their 
own in circumstances where it is felt that the presence of children would be 
undesirable or inappropriate. 
 
The overriding principle is that each application and the circumstances prevailing at 
each premises will be considered on their own individual merits. 
 
2.2 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder 
 
This licensing authority is aware that the Gambling Commission will be taking a 
leading role in preventing gambling premises from being a source of crime, for 
example the sale and distribution of controlled drugs, money laundering, prostitution, 
or unlawful gambling. The Gambling Commission’s Guidance does however 
envisage that licensing authorities should pay attention to the proposed location of 

35



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

10 

gambling premises in terms of this licensing objective.  Thus, where an area has high 
levels of organised crime, this authority will consider carefully whether gambling 
premises are suitable to be located there and whether conditions may be necessary 
such as provisions of door supervisors.  When making decisions in this regard, the 
licensing authority will give due weight to any comments made by the Police. 
 
This licensing authority is aware of the distinction between disorder and nuisance 
and will consider factors such as whether police assistance was required and how 
threatening the behaviour was to those who could see it, so as to make that 
distinction.  The licensing authority will seek the views of its legal advisers before 
determining what action to take in circumstances in which disorder may be a factor. 
As far as disorder is concerned, there are already powers in existing anti-social 
behaviour and other legislation to deal with measures designed to prevent nuisance, 
whether it arises as a result of noise from a building or from general disturbance once 
people have left a building.  The licensing authority will not use the Act to deal with 
general nuisance issues, such as parking problems, which can easily be dealt with 
using alternative powers. 
 
2.3 Ensuring gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 
 
This licensing authority has noted that the Gambling Commission has stated that it 
would generally not expect licensing authorities to become concerned with ensuring 
that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way as this will be addressed via 
operating and personal licences.   
 
2.4 Protecting children and other vulnerable people from gambling 
 
This licensing authority has noted that the Gambling Commission's Guidance for 
Local Authorities states that this objective means preventing children from taking part 
in gambling, as well as restriction of advertising so that gambling products are not 
aimed at or are, particularly attractive to children. The licensing authority will 
therefore consider, as suggested in the Gambling Commission's Guidance, whether 
specific measures are required at particular premises, with regard to this licensing 
objective.  Appropriate measures may include supervision of entrances/machines, 
segregation of areas etc.  
 
This licensing authority is also aware of the Gambling Commission Codes of Practice 
as regards this licensing objective, in relation to specific premises.   
 
As regards the term “vulnerable persons”, it is noted that the Gambling Commission 
does not seek to offer a definition, but states that “it will for regulatory purposes 
assume that this group includes people who gamble more than they want to; people 
who gamble beyond their means; and people who may not be able to make informed 
or balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or drugs.”  
This licensing authority will consider this licensing objective on a case by case basis.   
 
2.5 Licence Conditions 
 
Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate and will be: 
 

 relevant to the need to make the premises suitable as a gambling facility 

 directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for 

 fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises, and 

 reasonable in all other respects.  

36



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

11 

 
When considering any conditions to be attached to licences, the licensing authority 
will primarily focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at licensed 
premises on members of the public living, working or engaged in normal activity in 
the area concerned.  Conditions (other than default conditions and those required by 
law) will only be attached where they are needed to meet the requirements of the 
licensing objectives and are within the control of the licensee.  Any conditions applied 
will not be overly onerous and will be proportionate to the scale of the application and 
the risks involved.  Conditions will generally be considered unnecessary if they are 
already adequately covered by other legislation.  

 
Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis, although 
there will be a number of measures this licensing authority will consider utilising 
should there be a perceived need, such as the use of supervisors, appropriate 
signage for adult only areas etc.  There are specific comments made in this regard 
under some of the licence types below.  This licensing authority will also expect the 
licence applicant to offer his/her own suggestions as to the way in which the licensing 
objectives can be met effectively. 
 
This licensing authority will also consider specific measures which may be required 
for buildings which are subject to multiple premises licences.  Such measures may 
include the supervision of entrances; segregation of gambling from non-gambling 
areas frequented by children; and the supervision of gaming machines in non-adult 
gambling specific premises in order to pursue the licensing objectives. These matters 
are in accordance with the Gambling Commission's Guidance. 
 
This licensing authority will also ensure that where category C or above machines 
are on offer in premises to which children are admitted: 
 

 all such machines are located in an area of the premises which is separated 
from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which is effective to 
prevent access other than through a designated entrance 

 only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located 

 access to the area where the machines are located is supervised 

 the area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be 
observed by the staff or the licence holder, and 

 at the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently displayed 
notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18. 

 
These considerations will apply to premises including buildings where multiple 
premises licences are applicable. 
 
It is noted that there are conditions which the licensing authority cannot attach to 
premises licences which are: 
 

 any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible to comply 
with an operating licence condition 

 conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of 
operation 

 conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required (the 
Gambling Act 2005 specifically removes the membership requirement for 
casino and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated), and 

 conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes. 
 

37



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

12 

The Gambling Commission advises in its Guidance to Licensing Authorities that if a 
licensing authority is concerned that a premises may attract disorder or be subject to 
attempts at unauthorised access (for example by children and young persons) then it 
may require that the entrances to the premises are controlled by a door supervisor, 
and is entitled to impose a premises licence to this effect. Where it is decided that 
supervision of entrances or machines is appropriate for particular cases, a 
consideration of whether these supervisors need to be SIA licensed will be 
necessary.  It will not be automatically assumed that they need to be licensed, as the 
statutory requirements for different types of premises vary.  
 
Listed below are examples of possible areas where a licensing authority may wish to 
attach conditions to a licence if deemed appropriate: 
 

 Leaflets giving assistance to problem gambling being displayed in prominent 
areas and discreet areas such as toilets 

 The operator having regard to best practice guidance issued on the protection 
of the interests of vulnerable people 

 Positioning of GamCare helpline information positioned on the machine 

 Posters promoting details of the GamCare telephone number and website 

 A proof of age policy which would be agreed with a relevant responsible 
authority 

 The inclusion of designated chill out areas and areas of non-gambling in the 
premises.  

 
The licensing authority will not generally impose conditions that limit the use of 
premises for gambling unless it is deemed to be necessary as a result of the 
requirement to act in accordance with the Gambling Commission’s guidance, any 
codes of practice issued by the Commission, this Statement or in a way that is 
reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives. 
 
2.6 Licensed Family Entertainment Centres 
 
This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children 
and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that 
under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming machine areas.  
Plans of the premises should be provided with an application for an FEC permit.  
 
This licensing authority may consider measures to meet the licensing objectives such 
as: 
 

 CCTV 

 Supervision of entrances/machine areas 

 Physical separation of areas 

 Location of entry 

 Notices/signage 

 Specific opening hours 

 Self-exclusion schemes  

 Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare. 

 Measures/training for staff on how to deal with suspected truant school 
children on the premises 

 

38



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

13 

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 
measures. 
 
This licensing authority will, as per the Gambling Commission’s guidance, refer to the 
Commission’s website to see any conditions that apply to operator licences covering 
the way in which the area containing the category C machines should be delineated.  
This licensing authority will also make itself aware of any mandatory or default 
conditions on these premises licences, when they have been published.  
 
In exercising their functions in respect of family entertainment centre permits, the 
licensing authority need not, but may have regard to, the licensing objectives and 
must have regard to any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission. 
 
Except in exceptional circumstances, the licensing authority will not grant FEC 
permits in premises licensed for the sale of alcohol under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
2.7 Casinos 
 
There are currently no casinos operating within the Borough. 
 
The Council has not passed a ‘no casino’ resolution under Section 166 of the Act, but 
is aware that it has the power to do so. Should the Council decide in the future to 
pass such a resolution, it will update this Statement with details of that resolution. 
Any such decision will be made by the Full Council following considered debate, and 
the reasons for making the resolution will be given.  There is no right of appeal 
against this resolution. 
 

  

39



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

14 

2.8 Bingo Premises 
 
This licensing authority notes that the Gambling Commission’s Guidance states: 
 
“Licensing authorities will need to satisfy themselves that bingo can be played in any 
bingo premises for which they issue a premises licence. This will be a relevant 
consideration where the operator of an existing bingo premises applies to vary their 
licence to exclude an area of the existing premises from its ambit and then applies for 
a new premises licence, or multiple licences, for that or those excluded areas”.  
 
This authority also notes the Guidance regarding the unusual circumstances in which 
the splitting of a pre-existing premises into two adjacent premises might be permitted, 
and in particular that it is not permissible to locate sixteen category B3 gaming 
machines in one of the resulting premises, as the gaming machine entitlement for 
that premises would be exceeded.  
 
Children and young people are allowed into bingo premises; however they are not 
permitted to participate in the bingo and if category B or C machines are made 
available for use these must be separated from areas where children and young 
people are allowed.  
 
2.9 Betting Premises 
 

This licensing authority will, as per the Gambling Commission's Guidance, take into 
account the size of the premises, the number of counter positions available for 
person-to-person transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the 
machines by children and young persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to bet) 
or by vulnerable people, when considering the number/nature/circumstances of 
betting machines an operator wants to offer. 
 
There is no evidence that the operation of betting offices has required door 
supervisors for the protection of the public.  This licensing authority will make a door 
supervision requirement only if there is clear evidence from the history of trading that 
the premises cannot be adequately supervised from the counter and that door 
supervision is both necessary and proportionate. 
 
While the licensing authority has discretion as to the number, nature and 
circumstances of use of betting machines, there is no evidence that such machines 
give rise to regulatory concerns.  This authority will consider limiting the number of 
machines where there is clear evidence that such machines have been or are likely 
to be used in breach of the licensing objectives.   
 
2.10  Adult Gaming Centres 
 
This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children 
and vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the 
applicant to satisfy the authority that there will be sufficient measures to, for example, 
ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the premises.   
 
This licensing authority may consider measures to meet the licensing objectives such 
as: 
 

 Proof of age schemes 

 CCTV 

40



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

15 

 Supervision of entrances/machine areas 

 Physical separation of areas 

 Location of entry 

 Notices/signage 

 Specific opening hours 

 Self-exclusion schemes 

 Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare. 

 
This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 
measures. 
 
2.11 Tracks 
 
There are currently no tracks operating within the Borough. 
 
This licensing authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than one 
premises licence, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the track.  As 
per the Gambling Commission's Guidance, this licensing authority will especially 
consider the impact upon the licensing objective "protection of children and 
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling" and the need to 
ensure that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are 
excluded from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter. 
 
This licensing authority will therefore expect the premises licence applicant to 
demonstrate suitable measures to ensure that children do not have access to adult 
only gaming facilities.  It is noted that children and young persons will be permitted to 
enter track areas where facilities for betting are provided on days when dog-racing 
and/or horse racing takes place, but that they are still prevented from entering areas 
where gaming machines (other than category D machines) are provided. 
 
This licensing authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to meet the 
licensing objectives, however appropriate measures/licence conditions may cover 
issues such as: 
 

 Proof of age schemes 

 CCTV 

 Supervision of entrances/machine areas 

 Physical separation of areas 

 Location of entry 

 Notices/signage 

 Specific opening hours 

 Self-barring schemes 

 Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare 

 
This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example 
measures that may be taken. 
 
Gaming machines - Guidance from the Gambling Commission is available as regards 
where such machines may be located on tracks and any special considerations that 
should apply in relation, for example, to supervision of the machines and preventing 
children from playing them.  This licensing authority will consider the location of 
gaming machines at tracks, and applications for track premises licences will need to 

41



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

16 

demonstrate that, where the applicant holds a pool betting operating licence and is 
going to use his entitlement to four gaming machines, these machines are located in 
areas from which children are excluded.  Children and young persons are not 
prohibited from playing category D gaming machines on a track. 
 
Betting machines - This licensing authority will, as per the Gambling Commission's 
Guidance, take into account the size of the premises and the ability of staff to monitor 
the use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an offence for those 
under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the 
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer.   
 
Applications and plans - The Act requires applicants to submit plans of the premises 
with their application, in order to ensure that the licensing authority has the necessary 
information to make an informed judgement about whether the premises are fit for 
gambling. The plan will also be used for the licensing authority to plan future 
premises inspection activity. Plans for tracks do not need to be in a particular scale, 
but should be drawn to scale and should be sufficiently detailed to include the 
information required by regulations.  
Some tracks may be situated on agricultural land where the perimeter is not defined 
by virtue of an outer wall or fence, such as point-to-point racetracks. In such 
instances, where an entry fee is levied, track premises licence holders may erect 
temporary structures to restrict access to premises. In the rare cases where the outer 
perimeter cannot be defined, it is likely that the track in question will not be 
specifically designed for the frequent holding of sporting events or races. In such 
cases betting facilities may be better provided through occasional use notices where 
the boundary premises do not need to be defined. 
 
This authority appreciates that it is sometimes difficult to define the precise location 
of betting areas on tracks. The precise location of where betting facilities are 
provided is not required to be shown on track plans, both by virtue of the fact that 
betting is permitted anywhere on the premises and because of the difficulties 
associated with pinpointing exact locations for some types of track. Applicants should 
provide sufficient information that this authority can satisfy itself that the plan 
indicates the main areas where betting might take place. For racecourses in 
particular, any betting areas subject to the “five times rule” (commonly known as 
betting rings) must be indicated on the plan.  
 
2.12 Travelling Fairs 
 
It will fall to this licensing authority to decide whether a travelling fair which offers 
category D machines and/or equal chance prize gaming without a permit meets the 
statutory requirement that the facilities for gambling amount to no more than an 
ancillary amusement at the fair. 
 
The licensing authority will also consider whether the applicant falls within the 
statutory definition of a travelling fair. 
 
The 27-day statutory maximum for the land being used as a fair is per calendar year, 
and that it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are held, regardless of 
whether it is the same or different travelling fairs occupying the land.  This licensing 
authority will work with its neighbouring authorities to ensure that land which crosses 
boundaries is monitored so that the statutory limits are not exceeded. 
 
  

42



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

17 

2.13 Provisional Statements 
 
Developers may wish to apply to this authority for provisional statements before 
entering into a contract to buy or lease property or land to judge whether a 
development is worth taking forward in light of the need to obtain a premises licence. 
There is no need for the applicant to hold an operating licence in order to apply for a 
provisional statement.  
 
The Act provides for a person to make an application to the licensing authority for a 
provisional statement in respect of premises that he or she: 
 

 expects to be constructed 

 expects to be altered, or 

 expects to acquire a right to occupy. 
 
The process for considering an application for a provisional statement is the same as 
that for a premises licence application. The applicant is obliged to give notice of the 
application in the same way as applying for a licence. Responsible authorities and 
interested parties may make representations and there are rights of appeal.  
 
In contrast to the premises licence application, the applicant does not have to hold or 
have applied for an operating licence from the Gambling Commission (except in the 
case of a track) and they do not have to have a right to occupy the premises in 
respect of which their provisional application is made.  
 
The holder of a provisional statement may then apply for a premises licence once the 
premises are constructed, altered or acquired. The licensing authority will be 
constrained in the matters it can consider when determining the premises licence 
application, and in terms of representations about premises licence applications that 
follow the grant of a provisional statement, no further representations from relevant 
authorities or interested parties can be taken into account unless: 
 

 they concern matters which could not have been addressed at the 
provisional statement stage, or 

 they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances.   
 
In addition, the authority may refuse the premises licence (or grant it on terms 
different to those attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to matters: 
 

 which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional 
statement stage  

 which in the authority’s opinion reflect a change in the operator’s 
circumstances, or 

 where the premises has not been constructed in accordance with the 
plan submitted with the application. This must be a substantial change to 
the plan and this licensing authority notes that it can discuss any 
concerns it has with the applicant before making a decision. 

 
2.14 Licensing Reviews 
 
Requests for a review of a premises licence can be made by interested parties or 
responsible authorities; however, it is for the licensing authority to decide whether the 
review is to be carried out.  This will be on the basis of whether the request for the 
review is relevant to the matters listed below: 

43



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

18 

 

 in accordance with any relevant Code of Practice or Guidance issued by the 
Gambling Commission 

 reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives, and 

 in accordance with the licensing authority’s statement of principles. 
 
The request for the review will also be subject to the consideration by the authority as 
to whether the request is frivolous, vexatious, or whether it will not cause this 
authority to wish to alter/revoke/suspend the licence, or whether it is substantially the 
same as previous representations or requests for review. 
 
The licensing authority can also initiate a review of a particular premises licence, or a 
particular class of premises licence on the basis of any reason which it thinks is 
appropriate. 
 
The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the licensing authority should 
take any action in relation to the licence. If action is justified, the options open to the 
licensing authority are:  
 

 add, remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the licensing authority 

 exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State (e.g. opening 
hours) or remove or amend such an exclusion 

 suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months, and 

 revoke the premises licence. 
 

In determining what action, if any, should be taken following a review, the licensing 
authority must have regard to the principles set out in section 153 of the Act, as well 
as any relevant representations. 
 
In particular, the licensing authority may also initiate a review of a premises licence 
on the grounds that a premises licence holder has not provided facilities for gambling 
at the premises. This is to prevent people from applying for licences in a speculative 
manner without intending to use them. 
 
3 PERMITS, TEMPORARY AND OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES 
 
3.1 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits  
 
Where a premises does not hold a premises licence but wishes to provide gaming 
machines, it may apply to the licensing authority for this permit.  It should be noted 
that the applicant must show that the premises will be wholly or mainly used for 
making gaming machines available for use. 
 
The Act states that a licensing authority may prepare a statement of principles that 
they propose to consider in determining the suitability of an applicant for a permit and 
in preparing this statement, and/or considering applications, it need not (but may) 
have regard to the licensing objectives and shall have regard to any relevant 
guidance issued by the Commission. The Gambling Commission’s Guidance for 
Local Authorities also states: “In their three year Licensing Policy Statement, 
licensing authorities may include a statement of principles that they propose to apply 
when exercising their functions in considering applications for permits…licensing 
authorities will want to give weight to child protection issues”.   
 

44



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

19 

The Guidance also states: “An application for a permit may be granted only if the 
licensing authority is satisfied that the premises will be used as an unlicensed FEC, 
and if the Chief Officer of Police has been consulted on the application”. It should be 
noted that a licensing authority cannot attach conditions to this type of permit. 
 
This licensing authority will expect the applicant to show that there are policies and 
procedures in place to protect children from harm.  Harm in this context is not limited 
to harm from gambling but includes wider child protection considerations.  The 
efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be considered on their merits, 
however they may include appropriate measures/training for staff as regards 
suspected truant school children on the premises, measures/training covering how 
staff would deal with unsupervised very young children being on the premises, or 
children causing perceived problems on/around the premises. This licensing authority 
will also expect, as per Gambling Commission Guidance, that applicants 
demonstrate a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling 
that is permissible in unlicensed FECs; that the applicant has no relevant convictions 
(those that are set out in Schedule 7 of the Act); and that staff are trained to have a 
full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes. 
 

3.2 Alcohol Licensed Premises Notifications and Gaming Machine Permits  
 
There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on 
the premises to automatically have two gaming machines, of categories C and/or D.  
The premises merely need to notify the licensing authority.  The licensing authority 
can remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular premises if: 
 

 provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the 
licensing objectives 

 gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of section 
282 of the Gambling Act (i.e. that written notice has been provided to the 
licensing authority, that a fee has been provided and that any relevant code of 
practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and 
operation of the machine has been complied with)  

 the premises is mainly used for gaming, or 

 an offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises 
 
If a premises wishes to have more than two machines, then it needs to apply for a 
permit and the licensing authority must consider that application based upon the 
licensing objectives, any guidance issued by the Gambling Commission issued under 
Section 25 of the Act,  and “such matters as they think relevant.”   This licensing 
authority considers that “such matters” will be decided on a case by case basis, but 
generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable persons 
from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the 
authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do 
not have access to the adult only gaming machines.  Measures which will satisfy the 
authority that there will be no access may include the adult machines being in sight of 
the bar, or in the sight of staff that will monitor that the machines are not being used 
by those under 18.  Notices and signage may also be helpful.  As regards the 
protection of vulnerable persons applicants may wish to consider the provision of 
information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare. 
 
It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a premises 
licence for their non-alcohol licensed areas.  Any such application would most likely 
need to be applied for and dealt with as an adult gaming centre premises licence. 

45



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

20 

 
It should be noted that the licensing authority can decide to grant the application with 
a smaller number of machines and/or a different category of machines than that 
applied for.  Conditions (other than these) cannot be attached. It should also be 
noted that the holder of a permit must comply with any Code of Practice issued by 
the Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the machines. 
 
3.3 Prize Gaming Permits  
 
The Gambling Act 2005 states that a licensing authority may “prepare a Statement of 
Principles that they propose to apply in exercising their functions under this 
Schedule” which “may, in particular, specify matters that the licensing authority 
proposes to consider in determining the suitability of the applicant for a permit”.   
 
This licensing authority has prepared a Statement of Principles which is that the 
applicant should set out the types of gaming that he or she is intending to offer and 
that the applicant should be able to demonstrate that:  
 

 they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in regulations 

 that the gaming offered is within the law, and  

 there are policies and steps to be taken to protect children from harm.  
 
In making its decision on an application for this permit, the licensing authority does 
not need to have regard to the licensing objectives, but must have regard to any 
Gambling Commission guidance.   
 
It should be noted that there are conditions in the Act with which the permit holder 
must comply, but that the licensing authority cannot attach conditions.  The 
conditions in the Act are: 
 

 limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied with 

 all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises on 
which the gaming is taking place and on one day, the game must be played 
and completed on the day the chances are allocated and the result of the 
game must be made public in the premises on the day that it is played  

 the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out in 
regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize), 
and 

 participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other 
gambling.  

 
3.4 Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 
 
Members clubs and miners’ welfare institutes (but not commercial clubs) may apply 
for a club gaming permit. The club gaming permit will enable the premises to provide 
gaming machines, equal chance gaming and games of chance as set out in the 
regulations.  
 
Members clubs, miner’s welfare institutes and commercial clubs may apply for a club 
machine permit.  A club machine permit will enable the premises to provide gaming 
machines as set out in the regulations.  
 
Gambling Commission Guidance states: "Members clubs must have at least 25 
members and be established and conducted “wholly or mainly” for purposes other 

46



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

21 

than gaming, unless the gaming is permitted by separate regulations. The Secretary 
of State has made regulation and these cover bridge and whist clubs, which 
replicates the position under the Gaming Act 1968. A members’ club must be 
permanent in nature, not established to make commercial profit, and controlled by its 
members equally.  Examples include working men’s clubs, branches of Royal British 
Legion and clubs with political affiliations." 
 
Before granting the permit, the authority will need to satisfy itself that the premises 
meets the requirements of a members’ club and may grant the permit if the majority 
of members are over 18. 
 
Licensing authorities may only refuse an application on the grounds that: 
 

 the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial club 
or miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of 
permit for which it has applied 

 the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young 
persons 

 an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the 
applicant while providing gaming facilities 

 a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years, or 

 an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the Police. 
 
There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure available under the Act for premises which hold 
a club premises certificate under the Licensing Act 2003. As the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities states: "Under the fast-track 
procedure there is no opportunity for objections to be made by the Commission or 
the police, and the ground upon which an authority can refuse a permit are reduced."  
 
The grounds on which an application under the process may be refused are: 
 

 that the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming prescribed 
under schedule 12 

 that in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides facilities for 
other gaming, or 

 that a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the applicant in 
the last ten years has been cancelled. 

 
There are statutory conditions on club gaming permits that no child uses a category 
B or C machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any relevant 
provision of the code of practice about the location and operation of gaming 
machines. 
 
3.5 Temporary Use Notices 
 
Temporary use notices allow the use of premises for gambling where there is no 
premises licence but where a gambling operator wishes to use the premises 
temporarily for providing facilities for gambling. Premises that might be suitable for a 
temporary use notice, according the Gambling Commission, would include hotels, 
conference centres and sporting venues. 
 
The licensing authority can only grant a temporary use notice to a person or 
company holding a relevant operating licence, i.e. a non-remote casino operating 
licence.  

47



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

22 

 
The Secretary of State has the power to determine what form of gambling can be 
authorised by temporary use notices, and at the time of writing this Statement the 
relevant regulations (SI no 3157: The Gambling Act 2005 (Temporary Use Notices) 
Regulations 2007) state that temporary use notices can only be used to permit the 
provision of facilities or equal chance gaming, where the gaming is intended to 
produce a single winner, which in practice means poker tournaments. 
 
There are a number of statutory limits as regards temporary use notices.  The 
meaning of "premises" in Part 8 of the Act is discussed in Part 7 of the Gambling 
Commission Guidance to Licensing Authorities.  As with "premises", the definition of 
"a set of premises" will be a question of fact in the particular circumstances of each 
notice that is given.  In the Act "premises" is defined as including "any place". In 
considering whether a place falls within the definition of "a set of premises", the 
licensing authority needs to look at, amongst other things, the ownership/occupation 
and control of the premises. 
 
This licensing authority expects to object to notices where it appears that their effect 
would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set of 
premises, as recommended in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing 
Authorities.  
 
3.6 Occasional Use Notices 
 
The licensing authority has very little discretion as regards occasional use notices 
aside from ensuring that the statutory limit of eight days in a calendar year is not 
exceeded.  This licensing authority will need to consider the definition of a ‘track’ and 
whether the applicant is permitted to avail him/herself of the notice.   
 
4 DECISION-MAKING 
 
4.1 The Licensing Process 
 
The Council’s licensing functions under the Act will be carried out by the Licensing 
and Safety Committee, supported by a number of sub-committees and by officers 
acting under the delegated authority of the committee. 
 
Where there are no areas of contention, it is considered that many of the functions 
will be largely administrative.  In the interests of efficiency and effectiveness these 
will, for the most part, be carried out by officers. 
 
Where there are relevant representations in respect of an application the matter will 
be determined by the Licensing and Safety Committee or one of its sub-committees, 
as will any application for the review of a licence. 
 
The table shown at Appendix C sets out the agreed delegation of decisions and 
functions to Licensing and Safety Committee, Sub-Committee and officers. This form 
of delegation is without prejudice to officers referring an application to a Sub-
Committee or full Committee if considered appropriate in the circumstances of any 
particular case. 
 
4.2 Committee Terms of Reference 
 
A Licensing and Safety Sub-Committee of three Councillors will sit to hear 
applications where representations have been received from interested parties and 

48



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

23 

responsible authorities.  Ward Councillors will not sit on a Sub-Committee involving 
an application within their ward. 
 
Where a Councillor who is a member of the Licensing and Safety Committee is 
making or has made representations regarding a licence on behalf of an interested 
party, in the interests of good governance they will disqualify themselves from any 
involvement in the decision-making process affecting the licence in question. 
 
The Licensing and Safety Sub-Committee will refer to the Licensing and Safety 
Committee any matter it is unable to deal with because of the number of its members 
who are unable to take part in the consideration or discussion of any matter or vote 
on any question with respect to it. 
 
The Licensing and Safety Committee will refer to the full Council any matter it is 
unable to deal with because of the number of its members who are unable to take 
part in the consideration or discussion of any matter or vote on any question with 
respect to it. 
 
Every determination of a licensing decision by the Licensing and Safety Committee 
or a Licensing and Safety Sub-Committee shall be accompanied by clear, cogent 
reasons for the decision.  The decision and the reasons for that decision will be sent 
to the applicant and those who have made relevant representations as soon as 
practicable.  A summary of the decision shall also be posted on the Council’s website  
www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk as soon as possible after the decision has been 
confirmed, where it will form part of the statutory licensing register required to be kept 
by the Council. 
 
Where a licensing authority rejects an application, the applicant may appeal to the 
local Magistrates’ Court.  
 
The Council’s licensing officers will deal with all other licensing applications where 
either no representations have been received, or where representations have been 
received and it is agreed by the parties that a hearing is not necessary. 
 
Decisions as to whether representations are irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious will be 
made by Council officers, who will make the decisions on whether representations or 
applications for licence reviews should be referred to the Licensing and Safety 
Committee or Sub-Committee.  Where representations are rejected, the person 
making that representation will be given a written reason as to why that is the case.  
There is no right of appeal against a determination that representations are not 
admissible. 
 
5 FURTHER INFORMATION 
 
Further information about the Gambling Act 2005, this Statement of Principles or the 
application process can be obtained from: 
 
Licensing Team 
Bracknell Forest Borough Council 
Time Square 
Market Street 
Bracknell 
RG12 1JD 
 
Tel: 01344 352000 

49

http://www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/


 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

24 

E-mail: licensing@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
https://www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/business-information/licensing/alcohol-and-
entertainment-licences/gambling-premises-licences 
 
 
Information is also available from: 
 
Gambling Commission 
Victoria Square House 
Victoria Square 
Birmingham 
B2 4BP 
Tel: 0121 230 6500 
Website: www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk 
 

50

mailto:licensing@bracknell-forest.gov.uk
https://www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/business-information/licensing/alcohol-and-entertainment-licences/gambling-premises-licences
https://www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/business-information/licensing/alcohol-and-entertainment-licences/gambling-premises-licences
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

25 

Appendix A 
 
 

List of Consultees 
 

 Association of British Bookmakers 

 Association of Licensed Multiple Retailers 

 Bingo Association 

 British Amusement Catering Trade Association 

 British Institute of Inn Keeping 

 British Beer and Pub Association 

 Committee of Registered Club Associations 

 Gamblers Anonymous 

 GAMCARE 

 Holders of existing gambling licences / permits 

 Involve 

 Local businesses and their representatives, e.g. Bracknell Regeneration 
Partnership, Bracknell Forest Chamber of Commerce 

 Local community associations 

 Members of Bracknell Forest Council 

 National Association of Bookmakers 

 National Federation of Community Organisations 

 Parish and Town Councils 

 Premises licence / club premises certificate holders 

 Pub & Drug Watch 

 Public Consultation Portal 

 Thames Valley Police / Community Safety Partnership 

 
 

 

51



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

26 

APPENDIX B 
 
 

Map of Bracknell Forest Borough 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

52



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

27 

APPENDIX C 
 

Summary of Licensing Authority Delegations 
Permitted under the Gambling Act 2005 

 

Matter to be dealt with 
Full 

Council 

Sub-Committee of 
Licensing 
Committee 

Officers 

Approval of three year Statement of 
Gambling Principles 

X   

Policy not to permit casinos X   

Fee setting (when appropriate)   X 

Application for premises licences (new, 
variation and transfer) and provisional 
statements 

 Where 
representations have 

been received and not 
withdrawn 

Where no 
representations 

received/ 
representations have 

been withdrawn 

Review of a premises licence  X  

Application for club 
gaming/club machine permits 

 Where 
representations have 

been received and not 
withdrawn 

Where no 
representations 

received/ 
representations have 

been withdrawn 

Cancellation of club 
gaming/club machine permits 

  X 

Applications for other permits   X 

Cancellation of licensed premises 
gaming machine permits 

  X 

Consideration of temporary use notice   X 

Decision to give a counter notice to a 
temporary use notice 

 X  

Revocation of premises licence due to 
failure to pay annual fee 

  X 

Registration of small society lotteries   X 

Cancellation of registration of small 
society lottery due to failure to pay 
annual fee 

  X 

 
X indicates the lowest level to which decisions can be delegated 
 
 

53



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

28 

APPENDIX D 
 

Gambling Act Glossary 
 

Adult Gaming Centres Adult Gaming Centres must have a premises licence 
from the licensing authority to make category B, C and 
D gaming machines available to their customers. 
 

Betting Premises The Act contains a single class of licence for betting 
premises, which includes track and non-track.   
 

Bingo Two types of bingo can be offered: 
Cash bingo - where the stakes paid made up the cash 
prizes that are won; or 
Prize bingo - where various forms of prizes are won 
and are not directly related to the stakes paid. 
 

Casinos The Act defines casino games as games of chance 
which are not equal chance gaming. 
 

Customer Lottery A lottery run by occupiers of a business for the benefit 
of the customers who buy tickets sold on the premises 
(e.g. supermarket holding a hamper raffle). 
 

Exempt Lottery Incidental non-commercial lotteries  
Private lotteries  
Customer lotteries 
Small Society lotteries 
 

Gambling Act 2005 The Act governs the provision of all gambling in Great 
Britain, other than the National Lottery and spread 
betting.  It received royal assent on 7 April 2005. 
 

Gambling Commission The Gambling Commission licenses larger gambling 
operators and provides advice and guidance to 
operators, stakeholders and licensing authorities.  
They also have a role in enforcement and ensuring 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 
  

Gaming Machines Category of machine and where they can be situated 
are contained at the end of this glossary.  
 

Incidental Non-
Commercial Lottery 

Lottery that is run as an additional amusement at non-
commercial events with tickets sold only during the 
event, such as a raffle at a dance or church fair. 
 

Licensed Family 
Entertainment Centres 

The Act creates two classes of family entertainment 
centres (FEC).  Licensed FECs provide category C 
and D machines and require a premises licence. 
 

   

54



 

Bracknell Forest Council Statement of Gambling Principles January 2019 

 

29 

Lotteries A lottery is where persons are required to pay in order 
to take part in an arrangement, during the course of 
which one or more prizes are allocated by a process 
which relies wholly on chance. 
 

Non-track betting Betting that takes place other than at a race track. 
 

Occasional Use Notices Section 39 of the Act provides that where there is 
betting on a track on eight days or less in a calendar 
year, betting may be permitted by an occasional use 
notice without the need for a full premises licence. 
 

Private Lottery Lottery that requires membership of a society, place of 
work or single residential unit (e.g. raffle at a student 
hall of residence). 
 

Small Society Lottery Non-commercial societies if it is established and 
conducted for charitable purposes; for the purpose of 
enabling participation in, or of supporting, sport, 
athletics or a cultural activity; or for any other non-
commercial purpose other than private gain. 
 

Temporary Use Notices These allow the use of premises for gambling where 
there is no premises licence but where a gambling 
operator wishes to use the premises temporarily for 
providing facilities for gambling.  Premises which 
might be suitable for temporary use notices would 
include hotels, conference centres and sporting 
venues. 
 

Track betting Tracks are sites (including horse racecourses and dog 
tracks) where races or other sporting events take 
place.  Betting is a major gambling activity on tracks 
both in the form of pool betting (often known as the 
“totalisator” or “tote”) and also general betting, often 
known as “fixed-odds” betting. 
 

Travelling Fairs A travelling fair is one that “wholly or principally” 
provides amusements and they must be on a site that 
had been used for fairs for no more than 27 days per 
calendar year. 
No permit is required for gaming machines, but they 
must comply with age restrictions. 
 

Unlicensed Family 
Entertainment Centres 

Unlicensed FECs provide category D machines only 
and are regulated through FEC gaming machine 
permits. 
 

 

55



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

LICENSING PANEL 
16 JANUARY 2018 
1.45  - 2.17 PM 

  

 
Present: 
Councillor Ian Leake (Chair) 
Councillor Ms Moira Gaw 
Councillor Clifton Thompson 
 
In Attendance: 
Simon Bull, Legal Advisor 
Lizzie Rich, Clerk 
Charlie Fletcher, Bracknell Forest Council 
Mrs Hatice Anil Bunker, Applicant 

13. Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest. 

14. The Procedure for Hearings at Licensing Panels  

The procedure for hearings at Licensing Panel was noted.  

15. Application for new street trading consent for Mrs Hatice Anil Bunker, B&B 
Plus (reconvened from 29 November 2017)  

Following the initial hearing of application for a Street Trading Consent on 16 January 
2018, the Panel carefully considered all the information presented, both written and 
oral, from: 
 

 the Licensing Officer;  

 the Applicant, 
 

together with reference to the Council’s own Policy for Determination of Street 
Trading Consents. The Panel also took into account the concerns of the Traffic 
Manager and ward Councillors for Wildridings and Central which had been discussed 
at the initial Panel meeting. At the conclusion of the proceedings all participants 
present confirmed that they had been given the opportunity to say all they wished to 
say. 
 
After careful consideration of all the information presented, the Panel came to the 
decision to grant a Street Trading Consent to Mrs Bunker on Crowthorne Road North 
for B&B Plus, at the location shown in the photograph in Annex A in the agenda 
papers (referred to as location A). The street trading consent will always be subject to 
the parking restrictions imposed. If the permitted parking times are varied, Mrs 
Bunker’s ability to trade may be curtailed or eradicated at this pitch. This is a matter 
that the licensing panel who consider street trading consents have no control over. 
This area (the area where you may trade from) equates to the strip of parking bays to 
the North of the entrance to Cooper’s Hill Youth Centre, at the furthest end of 
Crowthorne Road North immediately before the road ends. The road is effectively a 

57

Agenda Item 9



 

 

cul de sac which is sealed off just beyond the bays. The Panel estimates from the site 
visit and the situation of the cars parked in the bays at the point of the visit, including 
a car in the spot you may occupy, that the designated bay would accommodate 3 
vehicles of normal size up to the size of a transit van. The Panel asked the applicant 
to ensure at all times that the way she parked would not unnecessarily limit the 
number of parking spaces below three, if possible. The Panel asked Mrs Bunker to 
reconfigure her parking during the trading period to allow for a maximum occupancy 
of three, whenever possible.  
 
The Panel undertook a visit to the site and assessed all possible locations, and were 
in agreement that the location shown at Annex A at the far end of Crowthorne Road 
North would not pose a risk to traffic on Bagshot Road, as there were no sharp 
turnings and traffic would be slowing as it approached the roundabout. The lit 
opening of the van would then be facing away from the Bagshot Road. Although they 
were mindful of the Traffic Manager’s concerns regarding dangerous driving and 
illegal stopping which were discussed at the meeting on 29 November 2017, the 
Panel were in agreement that the agreed location would mitigate against disruption, 
disturbance and distraction to drivers on the Bagshot Road and therefore found no 
reason for this application to be refused.   
 
Reasons  
 
The Panel found no evidence in the written and oral submissions from the Licensing 
Officer, to suggest that the principle of street trading on Crowthorne Road North was 
contested. As previously confirmed, the Panel agreed that the hours of operation 
need not be altered from the proposed 16:30 to 23:00, seven days a week.  
 
Panel Members agreed that by allowing street trading across the row of bays at 
location A rather than a single pitch, this would minimise the risk of parking 
disagreements, subject to the commentary above on this particular issue. For this 
reason, the Panel asked Mrs Bunker to be mindful in her use of the bays, to allow 
maximum use for other drivers wishing to park here. In allowing more flexibility 
around these bays, the Panel hoped to minimise the risk of the Police or Licensing 
Officers being called to the area. 
 
This street trading consent applies to the specified bays while parking restrictions 
permit (currently restricted to 2 hours, Monday – Saturday 8am – 6pm, Sunday 10am 
– 4pm).  
 
The Panel wished to remind the applicant that there had been no comparison drawn 
between other street trading unit or premises licence, and explained that each case 
was unique to the location and must be determined on its own facts and merit. The 
traffic management issues may vary considerably between one pitch and another.  
 
The Panel’s decision is binding upon the applicant and the Licensing Authority. There 
is no onward appeal against the decision of the panel. The only route of challenge is 
a judicial review on public law grounds.  
 

58



 

 

LICENSING PANEL 
21 FEBRUARY 2018 
2.10  - 3.19 PM 

  

 
Present: 
Councillors Allen (Chairman), Brossard and Mrs McKenzie 
 
In Attendance: 
Simon Bull, Legal Advisor 
Hannah Stevenson, Clerk 
Charlie Fletcher, Licensing Officer, Bracknell Forest Council 
Mrs Hatice Anil Bunker, Applicant 
Janet Cabell, Objector 

16. Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest.  

17. The Procedure for Hearings at Licensing Panels  

The procedure for hearings at Licensing Panel was noted. 

18. Application for new premises Licence - A&A Plus, Bull Lane, Bracknell  

Following the hearing of the application for a New Premises Licence in respect of the 
above premises by the Licensing Panel on 21 February 2018, I write to formally 
advise you of the Panel’s decision. 
 
The Panel carefully considered all the information presented, both written and oral, 
from: 
 

 the Licensing Officer who outlined the issues; 

 the Applicant, 

 the Interested Parties, including the interested parties who submitted written 
representations but did not attend. The panel also filtered out the irrelevant 
parts of the written representations as indicated they should by the presenting 
Licensing Officer and those were disregarded. 

 
The Panel considered the reference to the appropriate Licensing Objectives, the 
Council’s own Licensing Policy and the Secretary of State’s guidance. At the 
conclusion of the proceedings all participants present confirmed that they had been 
given the opportunity to say all they wished to say. 
 
The Panel noted that there had been no representations made by the Police, or any 
of the other Responsible Authorities. The Panel bore in mind the promotion of the 
four licensing objectives, the relevant objectives in this case being the potential for 
noise and smell nuisance in a residential area. These come under the specific 
heading of prevention of public nuisance. The Panel also considered crime and 
disorder but concluded that there was no link between the street trading activities of 

59



 

 

the applicant and crime and disorder. There may well be crime and disorder in the 
area but it was not directly attributable to the street trading by Mrs Bunker.  
 
The Panel decided that granting the licence would have an adverse impact on the 
promotion of the licensing objectives, in particular the public nuisance associated with 
the smell from cooking and noise nuisance associated with the current street trading 
activities. As there was unacceptable noise levels already existing the Panel saw no 
way that by allowing trading under premises licence and late night refreshment, it 
would be anything other than extending the noise later into the night. The Licensing 
Panel agreed that they would not grant the New Premises Licence or allow the late 
night refreshment activity in Bull Lane.  
 
Reasons  
 
The Panel heard the account of residents and objectors, and were convinced that 
there was an existing noise nuisance caused by the premises through both the 
generator and noise of cars and people using the premises. The Panel found that 
people pulling up, waiting and pulling away again after they had collected their order 
was already a cause of noise nuisance in a residential area.  Even though a new 
generator had been purchased on the 16 February 2018, the Panel felt that not 
enough time had been given for the residents to identify whether this made a 
difference to the noise or not. In any event the panel concluded that the cause of 
noise was from a number of sources: cars, people talking and the noise from the 
generator. The panel heard representations about the purchase of a Honda 
generator. However, that was only purchased after the applicant had made their 
application for a premises licence and late night refreshment and after objections to 
the application had been received. The Applicant should have recognised the noise it 
generated and showed insensitivity to the noise given that she has been trading in a 
residential area since October 2017. 
 
The way the evidence of noise was presented was not convincing. The applicant had 
provided the panel with You Tube videos of the noise. However, those are taken in 
the open air or from a parked vehicle. Such a method does not recognise that in the 
evening the ambient background noise level reduces and for people in their homes 
and particularly children who go to bed well before 11pm external noise is heightened 
and becomes more acute and disruptive than to people out in the community, where 
the recordings were taken. 
 
It was also the view of the Panel that there should be no presumption that people 
should tolerate noise of any level up until 11pm. Early risers, school children and 
people who have to get up for work are entitled to quiet enjoyment of their homes at 
all times. The Panel saw written evidence that people could not get to sleep until the 
trading ceased. It was the opinion of the panel that the current place of trading poses 
a real conflict between the business activities of the applicant and the rights of the 
residents in a residential area to have quiet enjoyment of their homes. Had this been 
a contested street trading application it is possible that it would not have been 
granted by this Panel. This was not a reflection on the Applicant, who the Panel 
believe will do all she can to reduce disturbance to residents. However it was very 
difficult to set up a street trading concern in a residential area which trades in the 
evening and up until an hour before midnight without disturbing the quiet enjoyment 
of the local residents homes.  
 
The Panel also believed that there was a strong smell of food cooking coming from 
premise, as the premises was in a residential area this was deterring residents 
nearby from having their windows or doors open.  The Panel agreed that the noise 
nuisance and food smell would be exacerbated by extending the opening hours of the 

60



 

 

premises due to its residential location. The Panel did question the granting of the 
licence, leaving it to residents to possibly call a review.  
 
However, the Panel felt there was already existing clear evidence that the trader who 
had been trading under a street trading consent since October 2017 was already 
causing noise nuisance and public nuisance due to the smell of cooking. By granting 
a Licensing Act Premises Licence to provide late night refreshments would only 
exacerbate an already existing public nuisance and the only reasonable decision was 
to refuse the licence.  
 
The Panel considered the issue of litter nearby but were not convinced that this was 
entirely as a result of the Premises. Issues regarding Anti Social Behaviour were 
raised in the written and oral submissions by the interested parties, but the Panel felt 
that this was also not directly linked to the premises. Also no representations had 
been received by the Police with regards to this or any of the four licensing 
objectives. 
 
In summary the Panel were convinced that an already existing noise and smell 
nuisance problem would be exacerbated by the extension of opening hours at A&A 
Plus, Bull Lane. Full reasons have been set out above. 
 
The Panel’s decision is binding upon the applicant and the Licensing Authority. There 
is no onward appeal against the decision of the panel. The only route of challenge is 
a judicial review on public law grounds. 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

61



This page is intentionally left blank

62



 

 

LICENSING PANEL 
14 MARCH 2018 
2.00  - 3.30 PM 

  

 
Present: 
Councillors Brossard (Chairman), Ms Gaw and Mrs McKenzie 
 
Also Present: 
Charlie Fletcher, Licensing Officer 
Donald Adams, Legal Adviser 
Lizzie Rich, Clerk 

19. Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest.  

20. The Procedure for Hearings at Licensing Panels  

The procedure for hearings at Licensing Panels was noted.  

21. Exclusion of Public and Press  

RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended, and having regard to the public interest, members of the public and press 
be excluded from the meeting for the consideration of the following item which 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information under the following category of 
Schedule 12A of that Act: 
 
(1) Information relating to any individual (Item 5). 

22. Report on Driver  

A referral was made to the Licensing Panel to determine whether a private hire 
licence could be issued following an application in January 2018. Having considered 
all the evidence, the Panel decided the licence should be granted with a formal 
written warning.  
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

63



This page is intentionally left blank

64



 

 

LICENSING PANEL 
11 APRIL 2018 
2.00  - 3.45 PM 

  

 
Present: 
Councillor Clifton Thompson 
Councillor Ms Moira Gaw 
Councillor Malcolm Tullett 
 
In Attendance: 
Charlie Fletcher, Bracknell Forest Council 
Donald Adams, Bracknell Forest Council 
Lizzie Rich 

23. Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest.  

24. The Procedure for Hearings at Licensing Panels  

The procedure for hearings at Licensing Panels was noted by all.  

25. Exclusion of Public and Press  

RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended, and having regard to the public interest, members of the public and press 
be excluded from the meeting for the consideration of the following item which 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information under the following category of 
Schedule 12A of that Act: 
 
(1) Information relating to any individual  

26. Consideration of Private Hire Driver Licence  

The panel considered an application for renewal of private hire driver licence. After 
discussion, it was agreed that the licence be granted with a formal written warning.  
 

65



This page is intentionally left blank

66



 

 

LICENSING PANEL 
23 APRIL 2018 
2.00  - 3.07 PM 

  

 
Present: 
Councillors Allen (Chairman), Brossard and Ms Gaw 
 
Also in attendance: 
Laura Driscoll, Principal Licensing Officer, 
Simon Bull, Assistant Borough Solicitor 
Lee-Ann Evanson, Home Office Immigration Enforcement Representative 
Hannah Stevenson, Clerk 

 

27. Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest.  

28. The Procedure for Hearings at Licensing Panels  

The procedure for hearings at Licensing Panels was noted by all.  

29. Application for review of premises licence for Sandhurst Tandoori, 80 High 
Street, Sandhurst, GU47 8ED  

 
The Panel carefully considered all the information presented, both written and oral, 
from the following people: 
 

 the Licensing Officer who outlined the issues; 

 the Applicant, 

 the Licence Holder 
 

together with reference to the appropriate Licensing objectives, the Council’s own 
Licensing Policy and the Secretary of State’s guidance and in particular the guidance 
issued following the amendments to the Immigration Act 2016, when the Home Office 
were granted new powers to seek a review of a premises licence in their own right as 
a Responsible Authority for breaches of the restrictions on employing people subject 
to immigration control in licensed premises.  
 
At the conclusion of the proceedings all participants present confirmed that they had 
been given the opportunity to say all they wished to say. The Panel bore in mind the 
promotion of the four licensing objectives, the relevant objectives in this case being 
the prevention of Crime and Disorder. 
 
After careful deliberation, the Panel decided that they would remove Mr Miah’s as the 
designated premises supervisor for the Sandhurst Tandoori and also revoke the 
premises license for Sandhurst Tandoori, High Street, Sandhurst GU47 8ED. 
 
Reasons  

67



 

 

 
To explain the Panel’s full reasons it was helpful to set out the central issues in the 
case. The Home Office sought a review of the licence and a revocation of Mr Miah’s 
DPS status because between November 2013 and November 2017 the Home Office 
Enforcement Team undertook three separate Immigration visits. On each occasion 
they found a number of people subject to immigration control who were forbidden to 
work at the licensed premises in return for wages, support, board or lodgings, which 
is contrary to the Immigration legislation. On each occasion a fixed penalty notice 
was issued to the premises and those notices contain total fines outstanding in the 
sum of £45,000. Mr Miah’s argument was that whilst he were the licence holder and 
the DPS at the premises since 2009 and even though his signature was on all the 
licence application documentation since 2009, he were only an employed manager 
and that the owner made all the decisions about who was hired and fired at the 
business.  
 
The Panel considered all submissions very carefully and they concluded that whilst 
Mr Miah may not have been responsible for the hiring and firing prior to becoming the 
owner in January 2018, he would have been aware of the first Immigration visit in 
2013. As a responsible DPS it would have been his place to insist that if his name 
continued to be on the licence, he would discharge the DPS role and general 
management at the premises. At this point he should have obtained an agreement 
with the owner that they provide him with evidence that staff had the right paper work 
to be employed at the premises. The panel gave him the benefit of the doubt in 
respect of the November 2013 enforcement visit. 
 
The second enforcement visit took place in September 2017. By that time the 
Immigration legislation had been amended by the 2016 Immigration Act and the 
Home Office had been granted new powers to seek a review of premises licences 
where there were people subject to work restrictions under the Immigration legislation 
working in licensed premises. The Home Office issued a second fixed penalty notice 
as they found illegal workers at the premises again, where Mr Miah was the DPS and 
been the manager since 2009. By this time there was clear Government guidance for 
those holding a personal licence managing licensed premises to have regard in 
respect of not employing people subject to employment restrictions in a licensed 
premises. It was Mr Miah’s responsibility to be familiar with this guidance as a holder 
of the personal licence and as the DPS of a licensed premises. However, again you 
were given a further chance as the Home Office did not seek a review at that point. 
 
There then followed a further enforcement visit in November 2017 where further 
illegal workers were again  found   working on the premises and a further fixed 
penalty notice was issued. There was evidence in the papers that Mr Miah was aware 
of both enforcement visits in 2017 and took no steps to ensure that people subject to 
immigration control without permission to work in the UK were not working in the 
licensed premises that he had managed continuously since 2009.  
 
Whilst the Panel gave Mr Miah the benefit of the doubt in respect of the first 
enforcement visit, they believe on the balance of probabilities that you would have 
been aware that the enforcement visit took place as the people disappeared from the 
premises following the enforcement visit  and as manager even if they returned again 
after the enforcement team left there would have been disruption to the working of 
the licensed premises on the evening of the visit which would have been drawn to Mr 
Miah’s attention as the manager. In addition Mr Miah’s name is on the premises 
licence as the DPS and the purpose of his name being on the premises licence is that 
enforcement enquiries are directed to the DPS. The panel found it hard to believe 
that as the DPS and the manager, that Mr Miah would not be aware that illegal 
workers were found and removed or that enforcement action took place. A 

68



 

 

reasonable holder of the position of DPS on a licensed premises would have taken 
steps to ensure that people subject to immigration control and a prohibition on 
working were not working on the licensed premises.   
 
In summary the Panel decided that by removing Mr Miah as the role of designated 
premises supervisor at the premises and also revoking the premises license for 
Sandhurst Tandoori, High Street, Sandhurst GU47 8ED that this was the only way to 
prevent further immigration breaches occurring in the future. The Panel considered 
whether the decision to remove Mr Miah as DPS and revoke the premises licence 
was proportionate and concluded that it was the only way of promoting the crime and 
disorder objective under the Licensing Act for the reasons set out above, namely that 
there had been serial breaches over 4 years of the crime and disorder objective. It 
was felt that Mr Miah had been given every chance and every opportunity to comply 
with the Licensing Act requirements and had failed to do so. Any action short of the 
action taken by the panel was felt to be unreasonable and would not promote the 
licensing objective of the avoidance of crime and disorder at the licensed premises. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

69



This page is intentionally left blank

70



 

 

LICENSING PANEL 
2 MAY 2018 
2.00  - 2.30 PM  

 
Present: 
Councillor Clifton Thompson (Chair) 
Councillor Michael Brossard 
Councillor Ms Moira Gaw 

 
Also Present: 
Charlie Fletcher, Licensing Officer 
Donald Adams, Legal Officer 
Lizzie Rich, Clerk 
Craig Baylis, Applicant’s agent 
Alex Ford, Operations Manager Oakman Inns 

30. Declarations of Interest  

Councillor Brossard declared that he had been invited to a pre-opening event at The 
Royal Forester’s, but would not be attending.  

31. The Procedure for Hearings at Licensing Panels  

The procedure for hearings at Licensing Panels was noted by all parties.  

32. Application for new premises licence for The Royal Foresters, London Road, 
Ascot, SL5 8DR  

Following the hearing of the application for a New Premises Licence in respect of the 
above premises by the Licensing Panel on 2 May 2018, I write to formally advise you 
of the Panel’s decision.  
 
The Panel carefully considered all the information presented, both written and oral, 
from:  

 the Licensing Officer who outlined the issues;  

 the Applicant,  

 the Interested Parties;  

 
together with reference to the appropriate Licensing objectives, the Council’s own 
Licensing Policy and the Secretary of State’s guidance. At the conclusion of the 
proceedings all participants present confirmed that they had been given the 
opportunity to say all they wished to say.  
 
The Panel noted that there had been a representation from Trading Standards, which 
had since been settled following the agreement of an additional condition to 
implement staff training and a refusals register.  
 

71



 

 

The Panel decided that granting the licence would not have an adverse impact on the 
promotion of the four licensing objectives, and agreed to grant the Licence. The 
Licensing Team will send you a copy of the licence in due course.  
 
Reasons  
The Panel received and noted written submission from local residents who had made 
representations. However, as the new premises licence as applied for had requested 
an earlier finish to the hours of the supply of alcohol on five out of seven days of the 
week (Monday to Thursday inclusive and Sunday), when compared to the conditions 
of the current licence, the Panel were minded that the new premises would be 
different to the old. The current licence as granted to Greene King Retailing permitted 
the sale by retail of alcohol from 10:00 to 00:30 Monday to Sunday, but the new 
application for this new premises licence requested supply of alcohol from 08:00 to 
00.00 Monday to Thursday, 8:00 to 01:00 on Friday and Saturday, and 08:00 to 23:00 
on Sundays.  
 
The applicant also commented on measures they had taken to ensure the premises 
avoided public nuisance. The Panel noted that the nature of the business was going 
to be towards high-end quality within this particular business type sector, with a 
business model geared towards a 60 / 40% split in favour of food sales, with no 
alcohol price discounting to customers envisaged and that the premises would also 
function as a hotel. It was expected that the outside areas on the premises would be 
cleared by 23:00 each night. All tables would be served by waiting staff, which would 
include constant supervision of outside tables. Parking had been increased by 15 
spaces. The designated smoking area would be located at the front of the property, at 
the furthest point from the homes of those who had made representations. 
 
Late Night Refreshment would constitute snack food for hotel guests following the 
closure of the kitchen at 22:30 on most nights.  
 
The Panel noted that no representations been received by the Police with regards to 
this application.  
The Panel also noted that the licensing regime contains a provision of seeking a 
review if there were breaches of the licence and the licensing objectives were not 
met, this mechanism rather than denying the granting of a new licence is the 
appropriate decision under the Licensing Act.  
 
In summary, the Panel granted the licence as applied for with the mandatory 
conditions and additional condition set out by Trading Standards. There was no 
evidence of a breach or potential breach of the Licencing Objectives. Those who 
made representations were reminded that should issues arise from the premises 
related to the Licensing Objectives, they should bring the matter to the attention of 
Licensing Officers.  
 
The Panel’s decision is binding upon the applicant and the Licensing Authority. 
 

72


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes
	L&SC Annual meeting minutes - 24 May 2018
	Minutes


	6 Licensing Annual Report
	Annual Report Annex A Current licences

	7 Review of Guidance Notes and Conditions for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Owners, Operators and Drivers
	Review of Guidance Notes and Conditions Annex A

	8 Review of Statement of Gambling Principles
	Review of Statement of Gambling Principles - Annex A

	9 Minutes of Licensing Panels
	Minutes
	A&A
	Minutes

	Driver 1
	Minutes

	Driver 2
	Minutes

	Sandhurst Tandoori
	Minutes

	The Royal Foresters
	Minutes



